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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ol SO Y AT
To the Members of Oravel Stays Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Oravel Stays Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) its associates and joint ventures comprising of the
consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the aforesaid consolidated Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (*“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates
and joint ventures as at March 31, 2020, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive income,
their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on
that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the * Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group, associates, joint
ventures in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis Of Matter

We draw attention to Note 50 (ii) to the consolidated Ind AS financial statement for the year ended 31
March 2020, which describes the uncertainties due to impact of COVID 19 on future projections.
carrying value of tangible assets, intangibles, receivables and financial assets as assessed by the

management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on future developments.

QOur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the board report. but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
Group including its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint
ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associates and joint ventures
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are responsible for assessing
the ability of the Group and of its associates and joint ventures to continue as a going concern.
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and
joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associates and joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs yallasdivays detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and joint
ventures to continue as a going concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and joint ventures to
cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures of which we are the
independent auditors and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction. supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statgassssador the financial




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
year ended March 3 1. 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 13
subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 74,458.6 Mn as at March
31, 2020, and total revenues of Rs 53,694.18 Mn and net cash outflows of Rs 9,793.87 for the year
ended on that date. These Ind AS financial statement and other financial information have been
audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements
also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 910.51 Mn for the year ended March 31, 2020, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of 4 joint ventures, whose
financial statements, other financial information have been audited by other auditors and whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, joint ventures /joint operations and associates, and our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act. in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries. joint
ventures and joint operations and associates, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries/associates/ joint ventures and joint operations are located outside India
whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited
by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such
subsidiaries/associates/ joint ventures and joint operations located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respeclive countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such
subsidiaries/associates/ joint ventures and joint operations] located outside India is based on the
report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, as noted in the "other matter” paragraph we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

(a) Wefthe other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors:
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(c)

(d)

(e)

("

(2)

(h)

T'he Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements:

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint ventures/joint operations, none of the directors of the
Group’s companies, its associates and joint ventures/joint operations, incorporated in India, is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint ventures and joint
operations|, incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 17 to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company. its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India for the year ended
March 31, 2020;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted in the *Other matter’
paragraph:

i.  Theconsolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures in its
consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 36 (a) to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

it.  The Group, its associates and joint ventures and joint operations did not have any material
foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the year
ended March 31, 2020;




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants : i )
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2020.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

(W«

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 20094941 AAAAFL9323

Place: New Delhi
Date: December 17, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ORAVEL STAYS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Oravel Stays Private Limited
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Oravel Stays Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™)
and its subsidiary companies (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group™), and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its joint
venture which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these

Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
to these Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and its joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to 1 joint venture which is company incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such joint venture incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 2009494 | AAAAFL.9323

Place: New Delhi
Date: December 17, 2020




Oravel Stays Private Limited

Clid: UE3080GI 201 2PTCIOT08R

Conzolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise]

Motes il i
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2317.15 2,936 56
Capetal work-in-progress 3 11041 a2 47
Right of use assets A 1116796
Goodwill 4 J0.943 97 266000
{her imangible asiets 4 17,060.96 1,807 55
Imtangible under developmant 1 45.19 -
Investment in joint venture 5A 10411 14 3426 559
Financial assets
1) Investments 58 323622
1] Cther financial assets aaA 1,611 55 G574 46
Non-turrent tax assets (net) 7 948 87 23535
Other non-current assets 124 152024 289.14
B6,137.44 15,308.74
Current astets
inuentones 8 234.32 308 81
Financial assets
(i} Investments s5C 1584592 28,012.53
(1) Trade receivables 9 1,315.80 1,285.39
{iH) Cash anc cash 2gumvalents Lo 34,695 67 4542971
) RBank halances other than cash and cadh squivalents % 11 11854 78 411
(v} Other finanaial assets BB 1,440 30 1.519.00
Other current assets 128 7564 58 6,624.30
7495238 83,426,485
Tolal assets 141,089.82 98,735.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eequity
Share capital 13 027 0313
Other equity
Equity companent of convertible preference share capital 13 umn .87
SECUriEs premium 14 167.033.35 B1,769. 64
Retained sarming 14 [134,706.18) (30,365 60}
Other resere 14 32,558 91 332.140.34
Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent 64,897 46 6355438
Non-Canteolling interests (200 56 23,732.11
Total equaty 54,496.90 B7,286.59
LIABILITIES
Won-current liabilities
Financial lubilties
{1} Borrowaings 154 26,253 Tk 166.07
D) Lease labiitiss 16 H.213 81
(uif Other finanoal kabilites 9 507.51 5832
Employee defined benefit obligation 154 103.79 8255
Ceterred tax habilities (net) 174 3,210.69 -
Other noncurrent babilities 20 162.98
36,295.20 469.92
Current liabilities
Fimancial habibties
i} Borrowings 158 1,693 .08 L ER-E
{0} Lease labditizs 16 6,397 54
{in] Trade payables 13
[a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprses 26.55 35.03
(b] tetal sutstanding dues of creditar other than micro and unall enterprises 24,701 33 6,227 08
(vl Othier financial habilties 198 2387 09 244273
Emplayee dafined benafit abligaton 166 WL 13.77
Current tax habilities (net) 178 4733 .13
Dther current labalities 41 4,686 17 131951
40,297.72 10,979.08
Total liabilities 76,582.03 11,348.00
Total equity and liabilities 141.089.82 98,735.59
The accompanying nates are an integral part of the consclidated finanoal statements
As per our reporn of even date For and an ibe half of the: board of directors of

ravel Stays Private Limited
For S.R Batlibol & Associates LLP ) : v ‘-ﬂ‘_[____:
Firm Registration No.: 101043W /€ 300004 : ~¥emn 5

Chartered Azcountants Ritesh Agarwal
Director
DIN 05191249
Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership No 98541

Abhis upda
Chinf Financial Officer

e: New Delhi
Plac : D.c!mm' e Mace: Guiugram Place Gurugram
Date: = Cute December 17,2020 Date: Decemben 17,2020



Oravel Stays Private Limited

CIN: UG3090GI2012PTC107088

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
tAmount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Notes

For the year ended

For the year anded

31 March 2020 31 March 2018
INCOME
Fevenue from contracts with customers 22 139,663.56 63,320 12
Other incoma 13 146797 1.887.23
Total incoma (1) 141,131.53 65,207.95
EXPENSES
Dperatng expenses 4 104,327 865 58,745 93
Employee benefits expense 5 51.027.12 14,847 70
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 3102564 70103
Finance cost 27 7,544 86 105 47
Other expenses I 59,770.82 14,283 61
Total expenses (i) 253,751.09 88,483.74
Loss before exceptional items, share of profit in jaint wenture and tax (-] (112,619.58) {23,275.79)
Exceptianal ltems 29 1795013
Loss before share of {loss)/profit in joint venture and tax {130,569.70) 123,275.79)
Share of (lassifarafit in joint venture (98051} 500
Loss before tax (131,480.21) {23,270.79)
Tax expense: kL]
CUrrent tax 5443 5740
Deferred tax (credit) {236.73) {0.25]
Income tax expensaf|credit) (182.30) 57.15
Loss for the year 1131,297.91) {23,327.94)
Other comprahensive income, net of tax 31
Other hensive income/{exp not to be reclassified ta profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement of defined benefit lakility 3183 {B.77)
Incame tax
Other comg flexp } that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange ditferences on translation of forergn aperations 319651 [1,505 52|
Income tax
Total other comprehansive income, net of tax 322834 1,604.39)
Tatal comprehensive loss far the year, nat of tax {128,068.57) ({24,932.33)
Loss is attributable to:
Equity holders af the Parent 1106,013.71) (17.329.58)
Mon-contralling mterest [25,284.20) [5.4998 36)
[131,297.91) (23,327.94)
Other comprehensive income is attri le to:
Equity halders of the Parent 1,6713.13 | 768 60
MNon-comtrolling nterest 1,555.21 1835.79]
322834 (1,604.39)
Tatal comprehensive income is attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent 104,340 58) {18,098.18)
Ron-controlling interest £3,728.99) 16,834 15)
(128,069.57| {24,932.33)
Loss per equity share
Face value of share INR 10431 March 2019: INR 10)
Basic and Diluted loss per shase (in INR) 32 {836.433.70) [159.026.35)

As per our repon of even date

For S R Batlibol & Associates LLP
Firm Registration No.: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

VYogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No 24941

place: New Delhi A\
Date: December 17,2020

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
ravel Stays Private Limited

(411%% 4

3 povel—

Ritesh Agarwal

Direeton

DN 35190249

Chiet Financial Officer

Mace: Gurugram
Date December LT, 2020

Place Gurugram
Date December 17,2320



Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIN: U62080G)2012PTCLOTOME
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

{(Amount in Indian Rupses Millions, unless stated atherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cazh How from operating activities:
ProditfiLoss) for the year (131480 21) {23,270.70}
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amertiation expenses 31.025.64 T0L03
(Profitfloss on disposal of fixed assets (net) 173962 (1249}
Provision for expected credit [oss 1.184.75 219.85
Bad debtsfadvances wirtten off 354,22 -
Fair waluatson of mutual funds {41 08} 1319.35)
Interest income on security deposuis [4.60) (8.88)
Frofit an sale of current investments [475.31) 1451121
Iriter 24t incarme {631 85) (5057 20)
Exchange difference fnet| {912} {2348)
Employee stock option compensation 402.86 158.63
Interest expense T.476.50 92,69
Share of profit and loss in point venture 91051 15 0
Impairment of jent venture 11681 5
Prowision for doubtful advance 24737
Provision for obsolate mventary 1857
Imparrment of goodwill T63.40
Imparment of other intangible assets 41657
Exception items 19,454.73 -
Operating loss before working capital changes {67,430.60] {23,976.52)
Mavementsin waorking capital :
Inerease i trade payablos 13,979.90 521151
Increase i other mon financial labalities 3,112,390 L\
Increase in provisions 359.27 12.63
|Decreasel/merease other financial abilies 169.53] 229473
[merease) in other financial assets {7,580.16) {1,568 52)
{Incraase) en other non financial assets 14,436.65) 16.,355.14)
{Imcrease) in mventaries {12071 {253 47)
{Incraasel in trace raconables {1,688 16) {1,276.39)
Cash jused in) operations (|66,873,74) {24,667.93)
Darect taxes pand (net of refunds) {777.04) {160.31)
&, MNetcash {used in) operating activities (67,650.78] (24 828.39)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows fram investing activities:
Purchase of fuwed assets (including ntangibles, capital advance. and JWAIP) (8,475.50} (5,357 66}
Proceeds from sale of fiwed assets 111318 14958
Purchase of mvestments {56.942.38] [64.749.12)
Sale of investments 72,852 19 49,408 30
Acquisition of subidianies, net of cash acquired 133.148.56] {2.16811)
Inwestment in oint venture {8,009.21) [3.42199)
Interest recesved 98728 725.70
Inwestment in fxed deposits (having matunty mere than 3 and 12 manths) 113,755.00) 1180.33)
B. MNetesch flow {used in) fnvesting sctivities {46,452,!0! |25,693.62)
Cash flows fram financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital L44 .
Proceeds from issuance of preference shase capital LINES 137
Proceads from secunty premium on ssuance of share capital 105,532.93 34.0923%
Payment af share 1ssue expenses 1275.41) 118551}
Capital reserve creatad on issue of ESOP - 36.26
Other equity created on account of deemed disposal of control ¥ 3181105
Acquasition of non controlling interest [ELE ] 2973057
Interest expense (2661.21) {92.14)
Proceeds of long term bomawings 2651289 190,79
Repayment of lang term borowings {251.45) 1297 26)
Prancipal repayment of lease labibities (28100.31) .
Proceeds of short term borrowings 170240 78383
Repayment of short term borrovwings (783.83) 12213}
Formign exchange movernent in financing activities (net) 220745 580.59
L. Metcash flow from financing activities 103,487.25 95,567.34
Net [decrense)/incraase in cash and cash sguivalents (A+B+C) {L0.525.93) 4504543
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4542871 53701
Efbect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (108.11) {152 73)
Cash and cash equivalants at the end of the year 34,695.67 45,429.71

(Thes space has been intenhionally feft biank)
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Components af cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10}

Cash on hand 14 20 3125
Furd n franst : 135 80
With banks
on current accounts 1068147 34,840 23
i deposits accounts 15.000.00 10,433 43
Total cash and cash equivalents 34,695.67 #5,420.71
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2020
Particulars 1 Agril 2019 Proceeds Payments Adjustments 31 March 2020
Long term borrowing Gincleding current maturities of long term borowings| 28605 26,512.89 {251.45) . 26,547 49
Short term borrawing 78383 1.702.40 178383} - 1.702 40
Lease labilities 15867 52 26,645 08 {25, 100.37) {61.534.56} 12.877 683
Forégn exchange movernents - - - (54801} {528.01)
Total 16,937 .40 114,860.37 (29,135.59) {62,082.67) 40,579.51
Changes in liabilities arsing from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2019
Particulars 1 April 2018 Pay Adj 31 March 2019
Long term borrowang {including current matunities of iong term borrowings) 25271 290.79 (257 48] o 28605
Short term borrowing 23.13 783.83 113.13) - 78381
Tatal 315.54 1.074.62 320.58) = 1,069.88
Ag per our report of even date Far and on behalf of the boaed of directors of
ravel Stays Private Limited
ForS.R Batlibol & Associates LLP ‘ i f2 ppyel—
Firm Registration No.; 103049W/E300004 fiadchg 7 6 ~*
Aresuntams
Chartered Ritesh Aganwal Aditya Ghash
Directas Director
[N 05192349 Dy a1M3415

A
‘{;:‘ll

Partner
Membership No 24941

Wil G

Chiek Financlal Officer

place: New Delhi
Date: December 17,2020

Place Gurugram Place Guragram
Date: Cecomber 17,2020 Date December 17,2020
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Oravel Stays Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

CIN: U63090GJ2012PTC107088
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Group overview

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of Oravel Stays Private Limited (the
“Company) (CIN: U63090DL2012PTC231770), its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) and joint venture for the
year ended 31 March 2020. The Company is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under
the provisions of Indian Companies Act, with its registered office situated at Ground floor- 001, Mauryansh Elanza,
Shyamal Cross Road, Near: Parekh Hospital, Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380015. The Group is primarily engaged in
operating technology enabled branded network franchise of budget Hotels and distributing them through its
online and offline distribution channels and also engaged in Hotels operation and management activities ncluding
operation of hotels, holiday homes, guest houses, and other accommodations and technical know- how and
training in field of operation and management of hotel. It also deals in packages, meetings, conferences & events
related activities, Information on group structure grovided in note 48,

The consolidated financial statements were autharized for issue in accordance with a resolution of directors on 17
December 2020

1. Basis of preparation

A

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and the joint venture used in the consolidation have been
aligned with the parent group and drawn upto the same reporting date as of Group 1.e. year ended 31 March
2020.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 [as amended from
time to time) and presentation requiremants of Division |l of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 1), as applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in millions of Indian Rupee (INR) and are
rounded to the nearest million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

The accounting policies, as set out in the fallowing paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Group, to all the periods presentad in the said financial statements, except in case of adoption of any new
standards during the year.

Details of the Group’s accounting policies are included in Note 2.

Principle of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Cormpany and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and anly if the Group has:

e Power over the investee {i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee)

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

*  Exposure or rights to variable return from its involvement with the investes.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majerity of voting rights result in cantral. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e  Thecontractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee




Oravel Stays Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

CIN: U63090GJ2012PTC107088
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s The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders.

s Right arising from other contractual arrangements.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Groug loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements fram the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If 8 member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements ta ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies,

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reparting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
differant from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consalidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to cansolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(1) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and habilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(2) Offset (eliminate] the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(3) Eliminata in full intragroup assets and lisbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate
an impairment that reguires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that anse from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-contralling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. Al intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in tha ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

i. Derecognises the assets {including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

il Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Iv.  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

V. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

vi.  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

vii.  Reclassifies the parent's share of companents previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
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garnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the relatad assets or
liabilities.

€. Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of each of the group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the parent company's functional and presentation
currency.

D.  Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilites assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following essets and lizbilities acquired in
2 business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

s Deferrad tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

® Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

e Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share
based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at
the acquisition date.

e Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with ind AS 105 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

e  Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term
of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and lisbilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquireea.

If the business combination 1s achieved in stages, any praviously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or lass or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date,
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with Ind AS 109, If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS and shall be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill 1s initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognisad for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
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all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate cansideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity as capital

reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
aquity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpaose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilitizs of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amaunt of any goodwill allocated to the umit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on tha
carrying amount of each asset in the urit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment |oss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating umit and part of the operation within that umit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwil! disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the nitial accounting for a business combination Is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Thase provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liahilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does nat exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

E.  Investmentin associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
nights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in its associate 15 accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to
recognise changes in the Group's share of nat assats of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating
to the associate isincluded in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate. Any
change in OCl of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCl. In addition, when there has been a
change recogrised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

If an entity's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which
includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate}), the
entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional |osses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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If the associate subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group detarmines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its assaciate. At each reparting date, the Group determines whether there s objective
evidence that the investment in the associate s impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value,
and then recognises the loss as 'Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture' in the statement of profit or
loss,

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment

atits fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss

F.  Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
Items Measurement basis

Financial assets and liabilities- Refer accounting policy Fair Value

regarding financial instrument)
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Present value of defined benefit obligations
Share based payments Fair value

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value ts the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or ligbility if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on this basis

G.  Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amaunts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are described in note-45;

H. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for bath
financial and non-financial assets and habilities.

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

® |nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
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® Inthe absence of a principal market, in most advantageous market for the asset of liability

All assets are liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised inta
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows

s Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or fiahilities.

e Level Z: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. denved from prices),

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 1s categonsed in its entiraty in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that s significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recagnises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reparting period during
which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the respective notes.

2. Significant accounting polices

A

Current/ non-current classification
All the assets and liabilities required to be classified as either current or non-current.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when 1t 1s:

Assets
An asset is classified as current when i1t satisfies any of the following criteria:
i Itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or cansumption in, the Group's normal operating cycle;
i itisexpected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting data;
. itisheld primanly for the purposes of being traded: or
Iv.  Itiscashor cash eguivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
I, Itisexpected to be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;
ii. itis due to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date;
i, itis held primanly for the purposes of being traded; or
iv. the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liahility for at least twelve months
from the reporting date
All other liahilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current assets and iabilities respectively.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.
Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current vs non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.
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B.  Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of Group, transactions in currencies other than the Group's functianal
currency {foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising an settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of the following:

e  Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity
or the individual financial statements of the fareign operation, as apprapriate. In the financial statements
that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the
foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss an disposal of the net investment.

=  Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OC| until the net investment is disposed of, at
which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss,

* Taxchargesand credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
Qct

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histerical cost in 2 foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in 2 foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e,, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCl or prafit or loss are also recognized in OC| or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations including goodwill and fair value adjustments anising on consolidation,
are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences on conversion of foreign operations are recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity {as
exchangedifferences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation).

When a foreign operation s disposed of in its entirety or partially, the cumulative amount of exchange differences
related to that foreign operation recognised in OCl is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

C.  Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowvisions of the instrument.

A finanaial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FWTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

il. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Gurugram
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On imitial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
*  Amortised cost
e Fair value through other cormprehensive income (FYOCH) — debt investment;
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI) - equity investment; or

e Fairvalue through profit and loss

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group
changes 1ts business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

e the asset s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOC, if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:
e the asset s hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This
election 1s made on an investment by investmeant basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requiremeants to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FYTPL if
doing sa eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, Including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recogrised in profit or loss.
Debtinvestmentsat EVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recogmised in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as incorme in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and
are not reclassified to profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it 15 classified as held for trading, or it is a darivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interast expense, are
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, Interest expense and fareign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or Inss on deracognition is also recogrised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
axpire, or it transfers the rights to receiva the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers
nar retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershig and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains sither
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial lizbilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual abligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Group alsa derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at
fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial
liability with modified terms is recognised in profit ar loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
anly when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends sither ta settle
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair
value, and changes therein are generally recogrised in profit or loss.

vi. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group are those contracts that reguire a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee,
Subsequently, the liability 15 measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recogrised lass, when apprapriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accardance with the principles of Ind AS 115,

Derecognition

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability 15 discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability 15 replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
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carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

D.  Property, plant and equipment
i.  Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The cost comprises purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of plant, property and eguipment
which take substantial period of time to get ready for use are includad to the extent they relate to the period till
such assets are ready for intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. It also includes estimated costs of dismantling and remaving the item and restoning the site on which it is
located,

Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs ta settle the obligation using estimated
cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current
pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of prafit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future
costs of decommussioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future
costs orin the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Above cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfiad, All other repair and maintenance
costs are recagnised in profit or loss as incurred.

Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of plant, property and equipmant are capitalized at cost and
depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the assat separately, if the component/ part
has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that

of the remaining asset.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at their estimated net realizable values or net baak
values, whichever is lower.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of plant, property and equipment are measured as the difference
between the-net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement af
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associsted with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on plant, property and equipment is calculated on straight-line basis using the useful lives prescribed
under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013,

Asset Useful life
3 to 6 years

Computers
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Haotel on site equipment

S years to 15 years

Board & Signage

2 years

Furniture and fittings

8 years to 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

QOver the unexpired period of lease or
useful lives, whichever is lower.

Lease hold improvements

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at 2ach financial year-end and prospectively if
appropriate.

E.  Intangible assets

i. Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at caost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

ii.  Amortisation

Amortization on other intangible assets is calculated on straight-line basis using the useful lives which are as

follows;

Asset Useful life
Trademark 3 years
Non-compete agreements 3 years

Internally generated software 3 years

Softwara 1.5 years to 5 years
Franchise Agreement 5 yearsto 11 years
Brand 5 years or indefinite

Amaortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
prospectively if appropriate.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate: :

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

s ltsintention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

e Howthe asset will generate future economic benefits

e  The availability of resources to complete the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised on a straight line basis aver the period
of expected future benefit fram the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of 3 years. Amartisation BXpEense
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.
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Inventories

Goods at site are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value including necessary provision for
obsolescence. Cost is determined on 3 weighted average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, reduced by the estimated costs of completion and costs to effect the sale.

Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses an:
s financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
s financial assets measurad at FYOC|- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities
at FYOC! are credit impaired. A financial asset 15 ‘credit impaired’” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
¢ abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
atherwise;
e itis probable that the berrower will enter bankruptey or other financial rearganisation: or
¢ the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

= debtsecunties that are determined to have law credit risk at the reporting date; and
° other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.,

Loss allowances for trade recevables are always measured at 2n amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default evants over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit [osses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected cradit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group 15 exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking
information.

The Group assumes that the cradit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
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e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
s thefinancial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit osses

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
2ach reporting date. The Group has established a pravision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cast are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the
statement of profit and loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (eithar partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject ta the write off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

it. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, ather than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount Is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's {CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an indjvidual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considerad impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows which are based on the budget of five years are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markat assessments of the time value of maoney and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation 15 provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

H.  Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through saie rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Losses
on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investrent properties are no
longer amortised or depreciated.




Oravel Stays Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

CIN: U63090GJ2012PTC107088
(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

I Employee benefits
i Short-térm employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The
Group recognizes the undiscounted amount of shart term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
services rendered as a hability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

ii. Share-based payment transactions

Employees [including senior executives) and board members of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby emplayees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation modal,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions ara fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recogrused in
employse benefits expense.

Service and nan-market performance conditions are not taken inta account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the canditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service reguirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lzad to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market ar non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied,

When the tarms of an equity-settled award are madified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award 1s cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award 15 expensed immediately through profit
or |oss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding aptions is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Cash-settled transactions

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date using a binomial model.
This fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a correspanding liability. The
liahility is re-measured to fair value at each reparting date up to, and including the settlement date, with changes
in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense,
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The Group has availed Ind AS 101 exemption and not applied fair value methad of accounting for options vested
before the date of transition.

iii.  Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund: Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
contributions to the provident fund administered by the Central Government under the Provident Fund Act, 1952,
are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the contributions are due. The company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. If the contribution payable to the scheme
for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognized as 3 liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received hefore the balance shest date, then excess 1s recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment,

iv. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projacted unit credit method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets lexcluding amaunts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
= the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss:

e service costs compnising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaillments and non-
routine settlements; and

s nat interest expense or income

v.  Other long-term employee benefits

Long-term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation on projected unit credit methad
made at the end of each financial year. The Group presents the entire leave encashment as current liability in the
balance sheet, since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for the 12 months
after the expiry date. Re-measurements gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

vi.  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted,

i Pravisions (other than for employee benefits)
A provision is recognised if, 3s a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that

can be estimated reliably, and it 1s probable that an outflow of ecoromic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
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estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, The
unwinding of the discount is recogmised as finance cost. Expectad future operating losses are not provided for.

Revenue

Effective April 1, 2018, the Group adopted IND AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, using the
retrospective method.

As per new standard’s requirement, revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for those
products or services,

The vanable consideration 15 estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue revarsal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur,

Judgment is required in determining whether the Group is the principal or agent in transactions with hotel
partners and end-users. The Group evaluates the presentation of revenue on a gross or net basis based on
whether it controls the service provided to the end-user and is the principal (i.e. "Gross”), or the Group arranges
for other parties to provide the service to the end-user and is an agant (i.e. net’).

The Group collects indirect taxes an behalf of the government and, therefare, it is not an economic banefit flowing
to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue

Revenue from sale of accommodation services

Revenue from sale of accommodation services is recognized on gross basis as the Group gains Control on stay
services before providing it to customer. Group consider itself as Principal in arrangement as it assumes abligations
towards performance of stay services to end customer including the acceptability of the services, takes a
significant amount of risk in the service delivery of the room stays and enjoys complete latitude in establishing
price for stay services, Revenue from sale of accommodatian services are recognized on basis of used room nights
by end customers, on accrual basis te the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Group and it can be reliably measured.

Revenue is recognized net of cancellations, refunds, discounts, incentives and taxes payable by the Group.

Cancellation income related to sale of accommodation services are recognized on cancellation of booking by end
customers.

Value added services

Value-added services include services in the nature of marketing and data analytics and preferential performance
listing which results in enhanced traffic to hotel partners. It is recognized on basis of actual performance to the
extent that it s probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and it can be reliably measured.
Commission from booking

Revenue In the form of commission from booking 1s recognized on net basis as the Group does not gains control
on stay services before it gets passed to customer, The group act as an agent, and earns commission income, in
the sale of rooms/homes. Commission incame (net off cancellations) are recognized on completion of boaking of
room nights by end customers, on accrual basis to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow
to the Group and it can be reliably measured, In these arrangements, the group does not recognise the gross
amount as revenue but only the fee cansideration it expects to be entitled to.
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Subseription Income

The Group provides wizard membership programs under which participating customers are eligible to earn
discounts on qualifying transactions in future bookings. Revenue earned under wizard membership programs is
recorded systematically over the period of membership. Invaicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract
liabilities {which we refer to as deferred revenue).

Sale of tours, packages and events (including wedding related services)

Income from tours, packages and events are accounted on net basis whers the Group is not pnimary abligor/ not
assuming inventory risk for perfarmance of services and has no pricing latitude hence acting as an agent. In case
the Group is primary abligor and assuming inventory risk and has complete pricing latitude., acting as a principal in
the arrangements income |s booked on gross basis.

In case the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes revenue (commission) (net of cancellations) on booking of
packages and events. In case, the Group acts as principal, it recognizes revenue on completion of tours, packages
or event as It assumes services promised as a single perfarmance obligation.

Rental income

Rental income from lease properties and allied services 1s recognized on gross basis as Group gains contral befare
providing it on rent to customer. Group consider itself as Principal in arrangement as it assumes obligations
towards performance of services to end customer including the acceptability of the services, takes a significant
amount of risk in the service delivery of the space due to committed rental and investment made in improvement
of properties and finally enjoys complete latitude in establishing price for stay services and renting of office spaces.
Revenua fram renting are recognized over period of time, on accrual basis to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefit will flow to the Group and it can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of foods and beverages

Revenue from sale of food and beverages are recognized on completion of supply to end customers. The revenue
is recognized on gross basis as the Group consider itself as Principal in arrangement as it assumes obligations
towards supplying food items to end customers.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR 1s the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrumeant or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument {for example, prepayment, extension} but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest
income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend i1s recogrized as income when the unconditional right to receive the payment is established.

Trade receivables and contractual balances

The Group classifies the right to receve consideration in exchange for services as either trade receivable or

unbilled revenue. Accommodation revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer
to as unhilled revenue).
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Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be realised from customers for services
rendered upto the reporting date, and is measured as per the contractual terms under arrangements entered with
the customers,

Contractual liabilities

Contract habilities are primarily from customer advance for which services are yet to be rendered on the reporting
date either in full or in parts. Revenue 15 recognised when the service is rendered to the customer.

L. Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases, mandatory for reporting penods beginning an or after Apnl 1, 2019, replaces existing lease
requirements under Ind AS 17. This standard 15 applicable to all contracts existing as on, or enterad into, on or
after 1 April 2019,

As a lessee
Identifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The campany assesses whether;

e Thecontractinvolves the use of an identified asset, specified explicitly or implicitly.

*  The Group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use, and

e The Group has right to direct the use of the asset,
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets.

Initial recognition of Right of use asset (ROU)

The Group recognises a ROU asset at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). ROU assets are initially measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognized, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remaove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Subsequent measurement of Right of use asset (ROU)

ROU assets are subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of ROU asset or the end of the lease term. If ownership of the leased asset
transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase optian,
depreciation s calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. In addition, the right of use asset Is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.
Refer to the accounting policies in section, | (i1}, impairment of non-financial assets.

Initial recognition of lease liability
Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the |ease payrents to be paid over the lease term.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise of the following:

e  Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments:

e Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate

e Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

e  The exercise price under a purchase option, extension option and penalties for early termination only if

the Group is reasonably certain to exercise those options.
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Subsequent measurement of lease liability

Lease liabilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reducad for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of l=ase liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, 2 change in the
lease term, a change in the |ease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resuiting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine such lease payments| or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying assat,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-tarm leases (i.e., thosa leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less fram the commencement date and do not contain 3 purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption ta leases of office equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of law-value assets are recognized as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer fram
the Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recarded as receivables and finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability ta the
lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance |ease obhgation.

Lease payments are appartioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a canstant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability. Finance expenses are recognized immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs, Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset 1s depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating |leasa payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to & business combination or to an item recognised directly in eguity or in other comprehensive income.

i.  Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable an the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws} enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

iR
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultansously,

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
lisbilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits, Deferred tax is rot recognised for;

e temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

e temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Group 1s able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

¢ taxable temporary differences anising an the initial recognitian of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will ke available
against which they can be used, The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit
may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset
only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or thera is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets
— unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that
it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis ar their tax assets and liabilities
will ba realised simultaneously,

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising fram foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they oceur,

Treasury shares

The Graup has created an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) for providing share-based payment to its employees. The
Group uses EBT as a vehicle for distributing shares to employess under the employee remuneration schemes. The
EBT manages shares of the Group, for giving shares to employees, The Group treats EBT as its extension and
shares held by EBT are treated as treasury shares,

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No
Eain orloss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
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instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recagnised in
capital reserve. Share options exercised during the reporting period are satisfied with treasury shares,

P.  Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

The Chief Executive Dfficer (CEQ) of Oravel Stays Private Limited are considered as chief operating decision makers
who assess the financial performance and position of the Group and make strategic decisions.

Q. Common control business combinations

Business combination arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder
that control the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented or If |ater, at the date that common control was established.

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Group are accounted for using the pooling of
interest methods as follows;

*  Theassets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

*  The identity of the reserved are preserved and the reserve of transferor become the reserve of the
transferee,

* The difference, if any, between consideration and the amaunt of share capital of required entity 15
transferred to capital reserve

R.  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and taxes applicable) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year i1s adjusted for events of bonus issue that have changed the number of outstanding and conversion of
compulsarily convertible preference shares, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

S Exceptional items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary
activities which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is
considered necessary to explain the performance of the group.

T.  Cashand cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considerad an integral part of the Group's cash
management.




Oravel Stays Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

CIN: U630S0GJ2012PTC107088
(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, uniess stated otherwise)

u.

21

Standards issued but not effactive

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rule 2019
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Secand Amandment Rule 2019, notifies new standard or amendment
to the standards. These amendments do not have any impact on the Group.

Change in Accounting Policies and disclosures
Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases, including Appendix & of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives, Appendix
B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease and Appendix C of Ind
AS 17, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on
the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessars will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not
have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
ofinitially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group has applied ind AS 116 to
all outstanding contracts as at 1 April 2019,

The Group also efected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date,
have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option {‘short-term leases’) and lease

contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

The effect of adoptian Ind AS 116 as at 1 April 2019 (increase/(decrease)) is as follows:

Assets Amount
Right-af-use assets 11,829.25
Liabilities

Lease liabilities 15,867.52

Nature and effect of adoption of Ind AS 116

The Group has lzase contracts for Office buildings and Hotel Properties. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the
Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as an operating lease. Upon adoption of Ind AS
116, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which has been applied by
the Group.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liahilities for those |eases previously classified as operating
leases, except for short-term leases. The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease
liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherain it:
e  Used asingle discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
o Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately befors the date of initial application
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e  Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the
date of initial application

e  Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
apphcation

e Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease

(this space has been intentionolly left blank)
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4, Other intangibe pssets

Intarnslly :
Gontwiln Teado marh Brand'®  Softwargt U UCIC %ets  Franchises i S v Total Iotanaibenndar
websie Agresmient*®  CompatoR Dovelopment™
saftwarn®
Gross carTying amount
At 1 Aptl 2013 L] - . 0w - . - 77 24754 -
Burchase 306.90 wan 580.13 ] . 23018 110 89728 114428 -
Aeguisition of sutsidianies 2,26811 - - I 1408 s - - 1203 -
Ulsnosals - - - . - - . . - -
At 31 March 2019 2,660,00 anzz 580,18 162.11 2.06 230.29 968.08 4,662.00 =
Purthase - 1346 . 75012 457 10 - 5823 121879 4518
Acquistion of subsidsanes (refer note 57) 12,047 37 - 10,1% 36 503 03 - 5,290 69 : . 35,043 51 .
Orsposals - . - 12595 . - - (13777} (22672 -
Excharge dfference | FCTR) - : 120,731 A7 950 (0051 13113 a3l 139.89) -

An 31 March 2000 21,707.37 al.63 10,755.61 1384.42 608 3,701.36 1110 132848 A0,677.70 45.19

Accumulated amortization

At 1Agni 2018 . - a3 58 - - . 462 20

Charged far the e - 458 - 4628 - - - 5323 11834

AC\:Um.ula.ded ceprecaation oA ety acoqusred on scquistion of - . - 107 16 ~ 4 . 158 '
whidiaries

Oisposals = = 5 -] t = *

Exchange diffsranca (FCTR) - = 19901 - - : {o.18} 10164

At 31 March 2019 - 453 - 115.88 156 - - [EXT] 134.45 -
Charged for the year - EER- ® I mT 2537 62358 ivo 53925 1510 31 -
Disposals - - . 18 50) - - (2030 (298.80) -
Impairment (refer note 281 4340 - 217 13 151% - 18424 L1737 .
Ixchange differencs (FCTR) = - o 403} 1305} .11 x 17.48 115171 )
At X1 March 2020 763,40 4318 24409 471,29 608 BOE.55 70 31356 267277 -
Nt ea amaount

At 31 March 2019 2,6E0.00 4368 580.18 4b.23 0.50 230.9 1110 29556 4,467.55 2
At 31 March 2000 20,943.97 1848 18511.72 513.13 - 4,895 30 7.0 1883 38,004.53 45.19
fiot hoek value 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019

Goodwil 004 .07 265000

Other intangble assets 17.060.6 LE07 55

Tatal 30,004.93 446755

Aequisition during the year®

a Brand, franchise agreerments snd saftware scquersd on sequisition af 0¥ Vacaton Homes Halding 8 Y (sabsidiaryl- refer note 52
Acquisitian during the previous yesrm

 Buring the o7 eviEus year, pursaant ko business trangher agree ment with M/s L- Fast Braa ds Private Limited. the Company had acquired Weddingg busingss Specific assets were scouired s part of Busness trarsfar AEreement inelsbep waie
Lantracss, PUrchase tansderaticn payable a1 part of buginags transfer agreements INR 401 50 millicn, there by resuiting in Goodwsll and Brand af INR 308,50 midben and INR S8 60 mibknn rmsgmctively
& #rand, franchise agreement, technatogy and non-campete assets acquired through Dusiness combin ations.

Impairmant testing of goodwill

Far Impaisment testing. goodwillis sllacated to a Cash Generating Unit [COU} representing the lawast level within the Graup atwhich goedwill is monaaed far internal management aurpases, and which i not higher than the Groep's operating
SOEMANG Gondwill 1§ tested for mpairment at least annuaity @ accordance with the Groug's pracedure for determining the recoverable vilue of each CGY The gaodwill is alacated to Hotels, Vacation Homes and Qthars which are also onerating
and repartable segments.

The recaverable amaunt of the 54 & determned on the bavs of decounted casn fiaws [DEF) (fair sabe Nierarciy level-3) The DLF of tne T6U 3 Setermined Dased an estmation of the cash faws the Group s expected 1o generats fram Apnl 1,
2023 ta D ecember 31, 20249 based on financiasl budgets spproved oy semor managsment

Hatel CHL
The recouerable amount of the Hatel CGL has been determined Dased on a value i use caltultion wing cash flow projechians frerm finsnesl budgets sporoved by senior management. Basee an which, 1T was esneuded that the recovarable
amaunt did nat gucesd the carrying vadus  As 3 result &f this analyses. m; nas an charge of IR £93 56 milliane in the cusrent year against the carryeng valus of goadwill aFNR 730 17 rmidhcns The impairment charge

s recarded in the statement af profit and loss

Vacatian Homes CGU
Tha recawerable amaint of the Vaeation hames CGU has been determinad based on & value n e calzulation wsing cash flow orajections from financial budgets apprawsd by Sanise maragerment s a result of this analysis, managarment did not
identify any impasment against the carryng value of goodwdl of ING 19,047 37 for ths C6U

Othars

The recovarable amount of the others CGU hat bean deterrnined based on 3 value in use saeulation uting cash flaw projections o financial budgets isproved by seniar managenant Based on whith, It was conduded that tha recoverable
amaunt did nat seceed the carrwng value A 3 result of thes amalysis, managerment has recagnised 3n imasirment charge of INA 33 84 millians in the curent year sgainst the zarrying value of goadwill of INR 1949 82 millions The impairmant
charge is recarded inthe statemant of proft and loss

Hey Assarmpti i of impal testing:

‘Diseaunt rates - Discount rates represent tha currant market assessmant af the nsks specihic to each CEU, taking inte conuid eration fhe tims valus of money and ndividud 19k of the undarbyng sssets that have not beon incarporated o the cask
flowe estirmates The discount rate calculation it based an the specific eifcumstances of the Graup and its eperating segments and is derived from its weighted svarage cost of capitel {WACST] The WASE tales intn acgaunt Bath debt ant equity. The
a5t of equty it derived from th by the Group’ ] The cost of debt s based on the nrerest-branng borrawings the Group s oaliged 12 service Segment-specihic rk i ncorparated by apEying individual bets
factars The beta tactors are evaluated annually based on nublicly tdata Ad b are made to factor inthe specific amount and taring af the fture tax flows n order to reflect a pre-tas discaun rate.

Arise inthe pre-tax diseaunt rate ta 3% in the Yasation Homes wauld not resul in any impsirment,

Grawlh rate Ratws are based on publ ndduskry research 2! that the ot naw entrants can have a sigrdicant impact on grawth rate assumptions. The effect of new antrasts s nat sapected 1o have an
adyversd impact on the forecasts. Aroduction by 1% in the fang-term grawth rate in the Vacstion Homes SGU wiuld st tegult in any impairmant

Aszumptions of discount eatas and growth rates uséd i impai tosting isas under:
CGU Unit Diseauft rate
Hatels 13 8%-33 gyl
Wac lian Homes 206 30
Dinars 18%)

~Refer note 38 for further disciosure
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CIN: U63090G12012PTC107088
Maotes to consalidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise}

5A. Investment in joint venture

As at As at
31March 2020 31 March 2019
Investment carried using equity method
Non-trade, Unquoted investments (fully paid up)®
Carrying amount of the Company's interest in joint venture accounted for using the equity method 11,316.65 342199
Add: Company share of net (loss)/profit of joint venture accountad for using equity method in consalidated statements of profit and {905.51} 5.00
loss
10,411.14 3,426.99
Aggregate amount of un-quoted investment 10,411.14 3,426.99
*rafer note 48.2 for detailed information,
5B. Mon-current investments
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Un-quoted investments
Investment at amortized cost
Investment in bonds
Nil (31 March 2019: 50) units of 7.50% HOFC Limited 495986
Ml {31 March 2019: 50} units of 7.60% HDFC Limitad 493.11
Mil {31 March 2019: 80) units of 8.07% L&T Finance Limited - 199.97
Nil (31 March 2019: 550} units of 7.80% HDB Financial Services Lirmited 545 16
Nil {31 March 2019: 1073) units of Kotak Mahindra Investments Lirnited & 755.44
Nil {31 March 2019: 250) units of 7.77% Bajaj Finance Limited - 248.03
Nil (31 March 2019: 250) units of 9.38% HDB Finance - 250.21
Mil {31 March 2018: 250) units of 7.62% Bafa] Finance Limited - 248.34
- 3,236.22
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments - 3,236.22
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
SC. Current inveéstments
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quoted investments
Investment at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual funds:
544,167 (31 March 2019: 544,167) units of Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Direct - Growth® 172,51 162,71
120,416 {31 March 2019: 120,416) units of Birla Sunlife Saving -Growth Direct Plan*# 48.27 44.77
475,296 {31 March 2019: 475,296) units of ICICI Prudential -Flexible Income-Direct Plan- Growth?* 185.54 171.66
237,487 (31 March 2019: 869,669) units of Axs-Liguid Fund-Direct Growth 523.50 1,803.28
62,520 (31 March 2019: Mil} units of SBI Prerier Liquid Fund 124.38 s
2,821,477 {31 March 2019: Nil) units of ABSL Overnight Fund-Direct-Growth 3,047.90 -
1,706,496 {31 March 2019: Nil) units of Axis Overnight Fund-Direet-Growth 1,800.18 -
16,708,112 [31 March 2019: Nil} units of ICICI Overnight Fund-Direct-Grawth 1,800.28 ¥
1,155,325 (31 March 2019: Nil) units of L&T Overnight Fund-Direct-Growth 1,800.24 -
239,189 (31 March 2019: Nil) units of HOFC Overmght Fund-Direct-Growth 710,18 =
668,821 (31 March 2012: Nil) units of UTI Overnight Fund-Dir-Growth 1,828.62 7
14,463,512 (31 March 2019: Nil) units of Nippon Overnight Fund-Dir-Grawth 1,550.30 -
553,291 {31 March 2019: Nilj units of 58 Overnight Fund-Dir-Growth 1,800.25 =
295,388 {31 March 2019: 3,484,944 units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Direct Plan-Growth# 86.78 966.06
Nil {31 March 2019; 15,342,606) units of Birla Sun Life -Liquid Fund-Growth-Direct Plan - 4,600.47
7,262 (31 March 2013: $80,230) units of HOFC Liquid Fund -Direct Plan Growth Option 28.51 3,604.72
11,082 {31 March 2019: 565,6233) units of Reliance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Direct Growth# 53.76 2,580.36
Nil {31 March 2019: 1,552,709} units of SB1 Liquid Fund Direct Growth - 4,547.22
36,886 {31 March 2019: Nil) units of LET Liguid Fund Direct Growth# 100.39 -
16,174 (21 March 2019: Mil) units of SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 50.28 =
15,782.27 13,480.25

(This space has been intentionally teft blank)




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIN: U630390G12012PTC107088
Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Un-quoted investments
Investment at amortized cost
Investment in bonds

Mil {31 March 2019:
Mil {31 March 2019:
Nl {31 March 2019:
MNil {31 March 2019;
Nil {31 March 2019:
Nil {31 March 2019:
Nil {31 March 2019:
Nil (31 March 2019:
Nil (31 March 2019:
Nil {31 March 2019:
Mil (31 March 2019:
Mil {31 March 2019:
MNil {31 March 2019;
Wil {31 March 2013:
Nil (31 March 2019;
Wil {31 March 2019:
Nil {31 March 2019;
Wil {31 March 2019:
Nil (31 Mareh 2019:
Mil {31 March 2019:
Nil (321 March 2019:
il {31 March 2019:
73 (31 March 2019;

500) units of 3.86% Aditya Birla Finance Limited
200) units of 8.31% L&T Finance Limited

750) units of 8.02% LIC Housing Finance Limited
50) units of 8.38% HDFC Limited

250) units of 7.59% LIC Housing Finance Limited
450) units of 8.72% LIC Housing Finance Limited
250) units of 7.65% Bajaj Finance Limited

500) units of 7.80% LIC Housing Finance Limited
300} units of 8.25% Bajaj Finance Limited

250) units of 9.40% HOFC Lirmited

400} units of 7.38% Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
200) units of 0% Bajaj Finance Limited

2500 units of 9,58% Baja) Finance Limited

500) umits of 2.40% Bajaj Finance Limited

200] units of 9,35% LIC Housing Finance Limited
2509 units of 7.90% Bajaj Finance Limited

1,000} units of Tata Capital Limited

250) units of 7.79% HOB Financial Services Limited
250) units of 8.63% HODB Financial Services Limited
80) units of 8.88% L&T Finance Limited

250) units of 8 75% Baja) Finance

100} units of 7.95% Tata Capital Financial Service Limited
3,350) units of Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited

Agpgregate book value of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments {refer note 42)
Aggregate amount of un-quoted investments

Aggragate amount of impairment in value of investments

6365

501.10
45987
748.71
459.94
249,37
450.54
248.23
485,84
300.65
251.98
198,27
192.35
255.52
511.67
206.05
154 61
498.786
249.97
250.28
277.58
245895
10047
1,830.52

63.65

9,522.28

15,845.92

28,012.53

15,782.27
15,782.27

63.65

18,490.25
18,490.25
9,522.28

*In case of Holding company, lien of INR 30,30 million {31 March 2019: INR 28.06 million) given in favour of SRE| Equipment Private Limited for laptops taken on lease, INR 95.41
million (31 March 2013: INR 91.97 million) against the bank overdraft limit taken by the subsidiary company from Yes Bank and INR 234.31 million (31 March 2019: Nil) against the

bank guarantee taken from Kotak Bank.
#In case of one of the subsidiary company (OYO Hotels and Homes Private Limited), lien of INR 31.37 million (31 March 2019: INR 23.10 million) given in favour of SREI Equipment

Private Limited for laptop taken on lease and INR 140.2 1 million (31 March 2019: INR 132,10 million} against the bank guarantee taken from Kaotak Bank,

6A. Other non-current financial assets carried at amortized cost

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Mon-current bank balances {refer note 11} 17.46 1.00
Security deposits
- Unsacurad, considered good 1,251.31 447 87
= Unsecured, considered doubtful 463,76 -

1,715.07 447 .87
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss™® (463,76) =

1,251.31 447.87
Other receivabies 342.78 -
Interest acerued on bands - 125.59

1,611.55 574.46
“includes allowance for expected credit loss amounting to INR 46376 million in respect of COVID 19 and restructuring expenses
Set out below is the movernent in the allowance for expected credit losses:
Asat 1 April - -
Provision created dunng the year 463.76 -
As at 31 March 463.76 =

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

(Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

6B. Other current financial assets carried at amortized cost

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 38287 306.20
- Unsecured, considered doubtful 264.05 8.71

646.92 314.91
Less: Allowance for expected cradit loss® (264.05) (8.71)

382.87 306.20
Receivables from joint venture {Refer note 34) 187.44 .
Other recoverable
-Unsecured, considered good 797.13 752.01
-Unsecured, considered doubtful 2,935.49 114.68

3,732.62 866.69

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss* {2,935.49) (114.68)

797.13 752.01
Unbilled revenue 31.95 203.80
Loans to employees 1386 -
Interest accrued on bonds and bank deposits 26.65 257.19

73.46 460.79

Total 1,440.90 1,519.00

“includes allowance for expected credit loss amounting to INR 25534 million in respect of COVID 19 and restructuring expenses

“*includes allowance for expected credit loss amounting to INR 1,833.24 million in respect of COVID 19 and restructuring expenses (exceptional) and balance INR 987.57 million is
in accordance with possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument in normal course of business included in provision for expected credit loss.

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses:

As at 1 April 123,39 71.16
Provision created dunng the year 3,076.15 52,23
As at 31 March 3,199.54 123.39
7. Non current tax assets {net)
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advance tax {net of provision for tax} 948,87 235.35
Total 948.87 235.35
8. Inventories
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Hotel consumables (at lower of cost or net realizable value) 498,11 308.81
Less: Provision for obsolete inventones (Refer note 50} [263.79) =
Total 234.32 308.81
9. Trade receivables
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables 1,315.80 1,285,398
1,315.80 1,285.39
Break up for security details:-
Trade receivable
Considered good - unsecured 1,315.80 1,285.29
Having significant mcrease in credit nisk 2,285.20 175.51
3,601.00 1,460.90
Impairment allowance (allowance for expected credit loss)
Having significant increase in credit risk (2,285.20) {175.51})
{2,285.20}) (175.51)
1,315.80 1,285.33

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or ather officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or ather receivable are due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 80 days.

* Provisian of INR 2000.35 million towards COVID 19 and INR 109.34 million in accordance with possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument {in normal
course of business).

Setout below s the movernent in the allowance for expected credit losses:

As at 1 April 175.51 73.50
Provision created dunng the year 2,108.69 102.01
As at 31 March 2,285.20 175.51




Oravel Stays Private Limited
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Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

10. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cash on hand 14,20 31.25
Funds in transit - 135.80
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 15,681.47 34,840.23
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of 2 months or less* 15,000.00 10,422.43

34,695.67 45,429.71

"Short-term deposits are made for short term ranging between one day to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
rate prescribed at the time of deposit. These deposit can be withdrawn by the Campany at any tima without prior natice and penalty on the principal,

Far the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cashon hand 14.20 31.25
Funds in transit - 135.80
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 19,681.47 34,840.23
-in deposit accounts with original maturty of 3 months or less 15,000.00 10,422.43
34,695.67 45,429.71
11. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deposits with ariginal maturity more than 3 months to less than 12 months *# 13,854.73 247.11
Deposits with originz| matunity for more than 12 months® 17.46 1.00
13,872.25 248.11
Less: amount disclosed under non-current financial assets refer note 6A) |17.46) {1.00}
Total 13,854.79 24711

#ln case of Holding company, lien of INR 48.82 million (31 March 2019: INR 45.71 million| for bank guarantee given in favour of SREI Equipment Finance Limited and 5Bl credit

cards and INR 0.13 million {31 March 2019: INR 0.83 million} for bank guarantee given in favour of Government authorities respectively.

*In case of one of the subsidiary company (OYO Hotels and Homes Private Limited), lien of INR 68.41 million {31 March 2018; INR 60.66 million] are provided by way of lien against

bank guarantee & VAT/CST registration.

12A. Other non-current assets

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Prepaid expenses
-Unsecured, considared good 1,504.02 282.83
-Unsecured, considered doubtful 877.56 -

2,381.60 282.82
Less: provision for doubtful advances™ (877.58) =

1,504.02 282.83
Capital advances
-Unsecured, considered good 16.22 6.31
-Unsecured, considered doubtful 26,78 -

43.00 631
Less: provision for doubtful advances [26.78) =
16.22 6.31

1,520.24 289.14
*includes provision related to purge properties (Refer note 50)
Set out below is the mavement in provision for doubtful advance:
Asat i April # -
Provision created during the year 904.36 -
As at 31 March 904,36 =




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIN: UB2090GJ2012PTC107088
Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020

{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

128. Other current assets

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Prepaid expenses
-Unsecured, considered good 3,453.81 4,790.89
-Unsecured, considered doubtful 530,22 *
3,923.03 4,790.89
Less: provision for doubtful advances* {530.22) -
3,453.31 4,790.89
Other recoverabls
-Unsecured, considered good 1,986.55 1,246.68
-Unsecured, considered doubtful 458.90 71.08
2,445.45 1,318.66
Less: Provision for doubtful recoverable* [458.90] (71.98)
1,986.55 1,246.68
Balance with government authorities** 2,124.62 586.73
2,124.62 586.73
Total 7.564.98 6,624.30
Set out below is the movement in provision for doubtful advance:
Asat 1 April 7i.98 3.50
Provision created during the year 917.14 68,48
As at 31 March 989.12 71.98

“includes allowance for expected credit loss amounting to INR 825.18 million in respect of COVID 19 and restructuning expenses and INR 91.96 million for doubt in recovery in
normal course of business included in provision for doubtful advances (Nate 27),
“*includes deposit paid under protest amounting te INR 110 million (31 March 2019; Nil}

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notestoc i fil for the year ended 31 March 2020
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13. Equity share capital
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Autherized capital
Equity shares
40,000 {31 March 2019: 40,000} equity shares of INR 10 each 0.40 0.40
0.40 0.40
FPreference shares
10,000 {31 March 2019- 10,000) 0.01% Saries A compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each .10 0.10
11,500 (31 March 2018: 11,500) 0.01% Serizs AL compulsonly convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each 118 1.15
10,500 {31 March 2019: 10,500) 0.01% Series B compulsarily tanvertible ¢ e pref & shares of INR 100 each 105 105
17,000 (31 March 2019: 17,000} 0.01% Series C compulsarily convartible cumulative preferance shares of INR 100 each 1710 1.70
10,500 {31 WMarch 2019: 10,500} 0.01% Series C1 compulsonly convertible cumulative preference shares of INA 100 each 105 1.05
32,300 (31 March 2019: 32,300) 0.01% Series D compulsonly convertible cumulative prefersnce shares of INR 100 sach 33 3.23
13001431 March 2019 1300} N.01% Series D1 compulsarily convartible cumulative preferance shares of INR 100 each a3 .13
13,7040 (21 March 2019 13,700) 0.01% Series £ compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each 137 137
15.400{31 March 201%; NI} 0.01% 3enes F compulsenly convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100each 1.54 -
11.32 9.7
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares
27,674 (31 March 2019: 20,833) equity shares of INR 10 each 0.27 0.20
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid equity share capital 0.27 0.20
Equity component of convertible preference sharas
8016 [31 March 20159: 2,018) 0 01% Series A compulsarily convertible preference sharesof INR 10 sach 0.08 0.08
11,372 {31 March 2019: 11,172) 0.01% Series AL compulsanly convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each 112 112
10,225 (31 March 2019 10,225) 0,01% Series B compulsorily convertible cumulative preference thares af INR 100 sach 1.02 1.02
16.66% (31 March 2019: 16,653) 0.01% Series € compul convertible lative praf; e shares of INRA 100 each 167 1.67
10,460 {31 March 2019; 10,460 | 0.01% Seres C1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference sharesaf INR 100 each L.05 105
31,279(31 March 2019; 32,279} 0.01% Series 0 compulsorily convertibie cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each ES ] 323
1,291 (31 March 2019: 1,291) 0.01% Series B compulsonly convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each 013 013
13,700 {31 March 201%: 13,700) 0.01% Series £ pulsorily convertible o lative preference shares of INR 100 each 137 137
14,375 (31 March 2019 Nil) 0.01% Seres F compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INF 100 each 1.44 .
Total issued, subscribied and fully paid compulsorily convartible cumulative preferance share capital 11.11 9.67
Total issued, subseribed and fully paid share capital 11.38 9.87
Less: Treasury shares - 10.07]
Total issued, subscrived and fully paid share capital, net of treasury shares 11.38 9.80
a) Reconciliation of the sh ding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting year
Equity shares
No. of shares Amount
At 1 April 2018 20,333 0.20
Issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2019 20,333 0.20
tssued during the year 13.561 ais
Cancelled during the year” 16,720) (0.07)
At 31 March 2020 27.674 0.27
*refer note 52 for further detail,
Prefarence shares
Series A compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 each {CCPS)
No. of shares A
At April 2018 3,016 008
Issued durmg the year - -
At 31 March 2019 B,016 0.08
lssued during the year - 2
At 31 March 2020 B.016 0.08
Series A1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preferance shares of INR 100 each [CCCPS)
No. of shares Amogunt
At 1 April 2018 11,173 132
issued during the year . 5
At 31 March 2019 11,173 112
Issued durmg the year p -
At 31 March 2020 11,173 1.12
Series B compulsorily ¢ [ ive praf shares of INR 100 each {CCCPS)
Blo. of shares Amount
At 1 April 2018 10.225 1.02
lssued during the year - -
At 31 March 2019 10,225 1.02
lssued during the year . 2
At 31 March 2020 10,225 1.02
Series C compulsorily convertible curulative preforence shares of INR 100 each |CCCPS)
MNo. of shares Amount
At 1 April 2018 16,659 167
lssued during the year - -
At 31 March 2019 16,6569 1.67
lssued during the year S =
At 31 March 2020 16,669 1.67
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Series (1 pulsarily convertible ive pref shares of INR 100 each ([CCCPS)

Mo, of shares Amount
A1 April 2018 10,460 1.05
Isswed dunng the year s -
At 31 March 2019 10,460 105
Issued during the year . -
At 31 March 2020 10,460 1.05
Series D compulsorily eanvertible ¢ lative preference shares of INR 100 each {CCOPS)

No. of shares Amount
At 1 April 2018 32,273 3.23
Issued during the year - ¥
At 31 March 2018 32,279 323
Issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2020 32,279 3.23
Saries D1 compulsorily convertible cumulstive preference shares of INR 100 each {CCCPS)

No. of shares Amaunt
At 1 April 2018 1291 013
Issued during the year - .
At 31 March 2019 1,291 013
lssised during the year - -
At 31 March 2020 1,291 0.13
Series E compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each (CCCPS)

No. of shares
At 1 April 2018 - -
Issued during the year 13,700 1.37
At 1 April 2013 13,700 137
Issued durmgthe year -
At 31 March 2019 13,700 137
Series F compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each {CCcrs)

Mo, of shares Amaunt
At 1 April 2018 . .
Issued during the year 5
At 1 April 2019 - -
Issued during the year 14,375 1.44
At 31 March 2019 14,375 1.44

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

[i] During the financial year 2013-20, the Company issued 13,189 equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up at 2 premium of INR 3,753,434.31 par share. The Campany declares and
pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Arnual General Mesting.

(&) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share, Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share and equal rights in
distributian of profit/surplus in proportionate to the equity share held by sharehalder, In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of squity shares will be entitled to
raceive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders, '

¢) Terms/rights attached to Series A compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS)

(i) During the financial year 2013-14, the Company issued 8,016 Series A CCPS, of INR 10 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 4,980.02 per share, CCPS ca rry non-cumulative
dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The prafarential dividend is non-cumulative and shall due only when declared.

{ii] Each holder of CCPS are entitled to convert the CCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder of the CCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicable laws, each CCPS automatically be converted into equity share, upon the earlier of (a) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or ib) in connection
with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus |or equivalent dacument by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws, Subject to the applicable laws, the CCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares|. Each CCPS shall entitle the halder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional equity shares into
which such CCPS could then be converted.

(i) In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total procescs from the such liguidation, shall be distributed priar te and in preference to any other sharehslder the higher of
following amount (a) liquidation proceeds pro rata to their respective equity securities liquidated (upon conversion) or (o) an amount equal to the amount paid by the respective
Investors for subscription of their respective equity securities (on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant ta a liquidation event plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due
dividend in respect of such aquity securities.

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated abova, the entire available proceed would be allacated and distributad
among the shareholder in proportion to the amount entitled to each such sharehalder.

d} Terms/rights attached to Series Al compulsarily convertible cumulative preference shares {CCCPS)

i) During the financial year 2014-15, the Company issued 11,173 Saries A1 CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 33,886.03 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative
dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends In Indian rupees, The preferential dividend Is cumulative and shall accrue from year te year whether ar not paid,
and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends accrued fram prior years) prior and in preference ta any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any
other class or series in same fiscal year.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS ar subject to the compliance of
applicabie laws, each CCCPS automatically be converted into equity share, upon the earlier of () one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or (b) in connection
with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospactus (or eguivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such [ater date 35 may be
permitted under applicable laws. Subjact to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all mattars that are submitted to the vote of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares), Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional equity shares into
which such CCCPS could then be converted.

{iii) In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed prior to and in preference to any other shareholder the higher of
fallowing amount {a] liquidation proceeds pro rata to their respective eguity securities liquidated (upon conversion) ar (b} an ameunt equal ta the amount paid by the respactiva
investars for subscription of their respective equity securities (on an as-if-converted basis) liguidated pursuant to 3 liquidation event plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due
dividend in respect of such equity securities.

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated abowve, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distributed
among the shareholder in proportion tothe amaount entitied to each such shareholder.

e} Terms/rights attached to Series B compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCPS)

{i} During the financial year 2015-16, the Company issued 10,225 Series B CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of (MR 109,520.12 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative
dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to year whather er not paid,
and acerued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any
other class or series in same fiscal year.

(i} Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the halder of the CCCFS ar subject to the comphance of
applicable laws, each CCCPS automatically be converted inta equity share, upon the earlier of (a) ane day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or {b) in connection
with an IPQ, prior to the filing of @ prospectus (or equivalent decument by whatever name called| by the Company ta the competent autharity or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of yotes equal to the number of whole or fractional equity shares inta
which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii5) In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed prior ta and in preferenca to any other shareholder the higher of
following amount (a) liquidation proceeds pro rata to their respective equity securities liquidated (upon conversion) or {b) an amount equal ta the amount paid by the respective
investors for subscription of their respective equity securities {on an as-if-converted basis) liguidated pursuant to a liquidation event plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due
dividend in respect of such equity securities.

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the smount as stated above, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distributed
among the shareholder in propertion to the amount 2ntitled to 2ach such sharahalder,
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MNotes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

f) Terms/rights attached te Series C compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares {CCCPS)

(i} Buring the financial year 2015-16, the Company Issued 16,663 Series C CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 380,618 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative
dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declaras and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall sccrue from yaar to year whether ar net paid,
and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any
other class or series in same fiscal year.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder af the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of
appiicable laws, each CCCPS automatically be converted inta equity share, upon the earlier of (a) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or (b) in connection
with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospactus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vate of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares|. Each CCCPS shall antitle the halder ta the number of votes equal to the number of whola ar fractional equity shares into
which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(i} In the event of the ligurdation of the Company, total proceeds fram the such liguidation, shall be distributed prior te and in praference to any other shareholder the higher of
following amount (3] liquidation proceeds pro rata to their respective equity securities liquidated {upon conversion) or (b) an amount equal to the amount paid by the respective
investors for subscription of their respective equity securities {on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant to a liquidation evant plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due
dividend in respact of such equity securities,

If the amaunt available for distribution to the shareholders are In-sufficient to pay the amount as stated above, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distributed
among the shareholder in proportion to the amount entitled to each such shareholder.

g) Terms/rights attached to Series C1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCPS)

(i) During the financial year 2016-17, the Company issued 10,460 Series C1 CCCRS, of INA 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 354,787.97 per share. CCCPS carry cumulative
dividend @ 0,01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from year to yesr whether or not paid,
and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends acerued from prior years) prior and in prefersnce to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any
other class or series in same fiscal year,

(i} Each halder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS inta equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the optian of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicadle laws, each CCCPS autornatically be converted into equity share, upon the earlier of (2] ong day priar to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or {b) In connaction
with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus [or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Campany to the competsnt authority or such later date as may ba
permitted under applicable laws, Subject ta the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled ta receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted ta the vote of the
shareholders of the Company {Including the equity shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the halder to the number of vates equal ta the number of whale or fractional equity shares inta
which such CCCPS could then be converted.

[ifi} In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed prior to and in preference ta any ather shareholder the higher of
following ameunt a) liguidation proceeds pro rata to their raspective equity securities liquidated (upon conversian) or {b) an amount equal to the amount paid by the respective
investars for subscription of their respective equity securities {on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant to a liquidation event pius any arrear of declared and accrued /due
dividend in respect of such equity securities.

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated sbove, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distriputed
armong the shareholder in proportion to the amount entitled to each such shareholder,

h} Terms/rights attached to Series D compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCPS)

i) During the financial year 2017-18, the Company issued 31,633 and 646 Series D CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up st & premium of INR 495,660.93 and INR 504,000 per share
respectively, CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue
fram year to year whether or not paid, and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends sccrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or
distribution payable upon shares of any other class or seriesin same fiscal year.

(it} Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holdsr of the CCCPS ar subject to the compliance of
applicable laws, each CCCPS automatically be converted into quity share, upon the earlier of (2] one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or {b} in connection
with an IPO, prior ta the filing of & prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws, Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be antitled ta receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submittzd to the vote of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder ta the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional equity shares into
which such COCPS could then be converted.

{iiii} In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from: the such liquidation, shall be distributed prior to and in preference to any other shareholder the higher of
following amount (a) liquidation proceeds pro rata to their respective equity securities liguidated (upon conversion) or {b) an amount equal to the ameunt paid by the respective
investors for subscription of their respective equity securities {on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant to a liquidation event plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due

dividend in respect of such equity securities.

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated above, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distributed
among the shareholder in aroportion to the amount entitled to each such sharehalder,
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Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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i} Terms/rights attached to Series D1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCPS)

{1) During the financial year 2017-18, the Cornpany issued 1,291 Series D1 CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 501,270 per share. CCCPS ca rry eumulative
dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrua from year to year whether or not paid,
and acerued Dividends shall be paid 0 full (together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any
other class or series in same fiscal year.

(1] Each halder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicable laws, each COCPS automatically be convertad into equity share, upon the earlier of {a) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or (b} in connection
with an IPO, prior to the filing of a prospectus (or equivalent document by whatever narme called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws, Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vate on all matters that are subritted te the vote of the
sharehalders of the Company (including the equity shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder ta the number of votes equal to the number of whele or fractional equity shares inta
which such CCCPS could then be converted,

(i) In the event of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed prior to and in preference to any other shareholder the higher of
fallowing amount {a] liquidation proceeds pro rata Lo their respective equity securities liguidated (upon conversion) or {b) an amount equal to the amount paid by the respective
investors for subscription of their respective equity securities (on an as-if-converted basis) liguidated pursuant te a liquidation eveént plus any arrear of declared and acerued/due
dividend in respect of such equity securities.

If the amaunt available for distribution ta the sharehalders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated above, the entire available proceed would be allocated and distributed
armong the shareholder in proportiaon to the amount entitled to each such shareholder.

il Terms//rights attached to Series E compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares [CCCPS)

(i} During the financial year 2018-19, the Company issued 5768, 2884, 2884 and 2163 Series E COCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at 3 premium of INR 2,511,276.50, INR
2,540,573.29, INR 2,4G8,458,11 and INR 2,385,248.29 per share respectively. Tha fair value of per share was fixed at USD 34,670.76 and the allotment was made at different dates
resulting in different exchange rate. CCCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupses. The preferentisl dividend is
cumulative and shall accrue from yeer to year whether or not paid, and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full [together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in
preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in same fiscal year.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS inte equity shares on a 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compiiance of
applicable faws, each CCCPS automatically be converted into equity share, upon the earlier of (a) one day prior te the expiry of 20 years from the closing date or {b) in cannaction
with an IPD, prior to the filing of a prospectus [or equivalent document by whatever name called) by the Company to the competent authority or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws. Subject to the spplicable laws, the CCCPS helder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the
sharehalders of the Company (including the equity shares), Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of vates equal to the number of whole or fractional equ ity shares into
which such CCCPS could then be convertad.

[iii) In the evant of the liquidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liquidation, shall be distributad prisr to and in praference to any other shareholder the higher of
following amount (a] liquidation proczeds pro rata to their respective equity securities liguidated {upon conversion) or (B) an amount egual to the amount paid by the respactive
investors for subscription of their respective equity securities {on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant to a liquidation event pius any arrear of declared and acerued/due
dividend in respect of such equity sscurities

If the amount available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amaunt as stated above, the entire available protesd would be allocated amd distributed
amaong the sharehalder in proportion to the amaunt entitled to each such shareholder.

k) Terms/rights attached to Series F compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCPS)

(1) Puring the financial year 2019-20, the Company issued 14,375 Series F CCCPS, of INR 100 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 3,903,136.81 per share respectively. COCPS carry
cumulative dividend @ 0,01% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumulative and shall accrue from yvear to year whether or
nat paid, and accrued Dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends accrued from prior years) prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable upon shares
of any other class or series in same fiscal year.

(i} Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into equity shares on 3 1:1 basis at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of
applicable laws, each CCCPS automatically be converted into equity share, upon the earlier of {a} one day prior to the expiry of 20 years fram the closing date or (b} in connection
with an 1PQ, prior to the filing of & prospactus (or equivalent document by whatever name called| by the Company to the competent autharity or such later date as may be
permitted under applicable laws. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the
shareholders of the Company (including the equity shares), Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of vates equal to the number of whole or fracticnal equity shares into
which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(i) In the event of the liguidation of the Company, total proceeds from the such liguidation, shall be distributed prior to and in preferenca to any other shareholder the higher of
following amount (3] liguidation proceads pro rata ta their respective equity securities liguidated (upon conversion) or {B} an amount equal to the amount paid by the respective
investars far subscription of their respective equity securities (on an as-if-converted basis) liquidated pursuant to a liguidation event plus any arrear of declared and accrued/due
dividend in respect of such equity securitias.

If the amaunt available for distribution to the shareholders are in-sufficient to pay the amount as stated above, the entire available proceed would be allecated and distributed
among the shareholder in proportion to the amount entitled to each such shareholder.
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1) Details of shareholders halding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Nam hi
e ot aRters o of shares % holding No of shares %oholding
Ritesh Agarwal 11,758 4245 11,758 SE.44%
Cravel Employes Weliare Trust 39 La2% 6,720 32.26%
B Hospitality Holdings {Cayman| 14,081 50.88% -
Series A compulsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 sach fully paid up {CCPS)
As at 31 March 2020 Asat 31 March 2019
Name of sharehalders
a No of shares % holding Mo of shares % holding
Lizhtspeed Venture Partners (X {Mauritiys) . = G413 H0 00%
SVF India Holdng {Cayman) Limited 1,603 20.00% 1,603 20.00%
RA Haspitality Holdings {Cayman| 6,413 80.00%
Series A1 compulsorily convertible . ive prefi e shares of INR 100 each fully paid up (CCCPS)
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2018
Name of sharcholders =
Mo of shares % holding Mo of shares % halding
Sequeia Capital India Investments 1V 1,858 16.63% 7,578 B7.82%
Lightspeed Venture Fartners IX {Mauritius] 694 6.21% 2,378 25.76%
KA Hospitality Holdings {Cayman) 7,804 F0.74% i .
SVE India Holding (Cayman) Limited nr &42% & b 642%
Series B compulsarily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up (CCCPS)
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
N f shareheld
R AE, £ Mo of shares % holding Mo of shares % holding
Lightspred Venture Partners I {Mauritius} 2,834 27.72% 2,834 27.72%
Sequoia Capital India Investments IV 2,100 20,54% 2,100 20.54%
SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited 4,921 48.13% 4,921 A8 13%

Series € eompulsorily convertible cumulative preferencs shares of INR 100 each fully paid up [CCCPS)

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

i of sharehaol
ki FReldes Noof shares % holding o of shares % holding
Sequola Capital India Investments 1V 533 278 2173 13.04%
Lightspeed Venture Partners Select Mauntius 464 3208 2,086 12.81%
SVF India Holding {Cayman] Limited 11,418 68.47% 11,416 GB.47%
Rt Hospitality Holdings {Cayman) 3,783 22.73% - -
Series C1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up (CCEPS)
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Mame of sh
e el o of sharas % halding Mo of shares % holding
SWF India Holding {Cayman) Limited 10,460 100.00% 10,4640 100000%

Series O compulsorily canvertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up |CCCPS)

Mame of shareholders

As at 31 march 2020

As at 31 March 2018

Mo of shares % holding

No of shares % haolding

SYF India Holdings {Cayman) Limited

Series D1 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up {CCCPS)

25,050 90.00%

25,050 a0.00%

Name of sharahalders

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 Mareh 2019

No of shares 3 holding No of shares % holding
China Lodging Holdings [HK) Limited 1291 100.00% 1,291 100004
Series E compulsarily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up (CCCPS)

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
N of shari
s o shRretiaens No of shares 2% holding Mo of shares % holding

5WF India Holdings {Cayman) Limited 5,769 42.11% 5,769 42.11%
Al Holdngs Inc. 2,884 21.05% 2,884 21.05%
Auirbnb Inc 2,163 15.79% 2,163 15.79%
Star Virtue Investment Limited 2,884 2L.05% 2,884 21.05%
Series F compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 100 each fully paid up (CCCPS)
il ahatshiite s As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 :

Mo of shares Khold[ﬂ_ﬁ_ No of shares % holding
SVF India Haldings (Cayman) Limitad 9,626 G6.96% . -
R Hospitality Holdings {Cayman) 4,749 33.08% .

As per records of the company, mcluding its register of sharehalders/ members and other declarations received from sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding 1epresents

legal ownerships of shares.
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(m) Agpregate number of shares boupht back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
Equity shares bought back by the Campany by utilizing securities premium during the year Nil. (31 March 20015 Nil)

During the year 2016-17, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 14 June 2016 approved a proposal to buyback 1,863 Equity Sharés of the Company, at a price not exceeding
INA 320,926.55 per equity share ireferred to “Maximum Buyback Prica”) from sharehoiders of the Company in aceordance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 and rulas made
thereunder. The Company obtained the approval of the sharehalders for the buyback process on 28 June 2016 and the buyback process was completed on 30 June 2016

{n) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option {ES0P] plan of the company, plaase refer note 40

(8] During the year 2016-17, Innoven Capital India Private Limited has given loans to a subsidiary company ameunting to INR 550 millien, As per terms of borrowings, Innoven Capital india Private
Limited has right to subscribe such number of Series C2 compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of the Company that armounts 1o INE 3,60 mitlion to be issued by the Company at
subscription price of INR 394,887 37 per share. The right to subscribe s exercisable in whole or in part at any tirme 2nd from tme to ime on or before the expiration date of 8 years fram the date of
respective loan tranches.

(This space has been intentianally left blank)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2020
[Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

14. Other aguity

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Retained sarnings [135,646.88) {29,537.96)
B. Other comprehensive income 94549 {727.64)
C. Securities premium 167,033.35 £1,769.84
Other reserves
D. Capital redemption reserve ['CRR'} 0.0z 0.02
E. Equity settled employee benefit resarye 624.48 265.91
F. Capital Reserve 42,63 42.63
G, share Warrant 2073 20.73
H. Other equity on deemed disposal 31,811.05 31 811.05
54,890.88 63,544.57
A. Retained @arnings
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year {29,637.96) {12,308.28)
Add: Loss for the year {105,008.92) {17,329.58)
Less: Cumulative dividend on prefarance shares* [0.00) {0.00})
Balance at the end of year (135,646.88) {29,637.96)
*Amounts are raunded up in million upto two decimals.
B. Other comprehensive income
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of year (727.64) 40,96
Add: {loss|/gain for the year 1,673.13 (768.60)
Balance at the end af year 945.49 {727.64)
C. Securities premium
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of year 61,769.84 27,863.06
Add: Premium on issue of preference shares 56,109,934 34,092.39
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares 49,428,598 -
Less: Share issus axpenses {275.41) {185.61
Balance at the end of year 167,033.35 61,769.84
D. Capital redemption reserve ("CRR")
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Balance at the beginning of year 0.02 0.02
Add: Transfer from securities premium on buy-back of shares - =
Balance at the end of year 0.02 0.02
E. Equity sattled employee benefit reserve
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of year 265.91 113.56
Add: Compensation options granted during the year 418.57 158.47
Less: Transferred to capital reserve - [6.11)
Balance at the end of year 684,48 265.91
F, Capital reserve
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Balance at the beginning of year 42,63 0.25
Add: Reserve created during the year - 36.26
Add: Transferred from equity settled employee benefit reserve - 6.12
Balance at the end of year 42,63 42.63
G, Share warrants
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of year 20.73 2073
Add; Addition dunng the year - -
Balance at the end of year 20.73 20,73

A. Retained earnings: Retained earnings represent the amaunt of accumulated earnings of the Group,

B. Other comprehensive income: Other comprehensive income represents exchange difference on translation of foreign aperation.

€. Securities premium account: Securities prernium is used to record the premium received on Issue of shares. Itis utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013

D. Capital redemption reserve [CRR): Capital redemption reserve created in accardance with the provision contained in the Companies Act 2013 and rules made tharsunder an
buy back of equity shares

E. Equity settled employee benefit reserve: The Group has established equity settied share based payment plans for certain categaries of employees of the Group.

F. Capital Reserve: Capital reserve represents amount transferred from equity settled emplayes benefit raserve pursuant to exercise of stack options by employeas,

G. Share Warrant: Shares warrant represent right given to subscribe shares against the loan taken by the subsidiary company. Refer note 13{o) for further details.

H. Other equity on deemed disposal: Other equity on deemed disposal is created on account of deemed disposal of contral in subsidiaries.
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MNotes to consalidoted fi ials fior the year ended on 31 March 2020
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15A, Borrowings-Non current

Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Term Loan
Secured loan
Term loan from financial institution {refer note ab and c) 15,815.06 243,34
Term loan fram bank (refer note d) 1041971 -
Finance lzase obligation (refer nots &) 34.61 42,71

26,269.38 286.05
Less: Amaunt clubbed under other current financizl liabilities (rafer note 198} {9.70) (120.,00)

26,259.68 166.05
Unsecured loan 0.02 0.02

26,259.70 166.07

a. During the year 2016-17, OYO Hotels and Homes Private Limited had taken term loan from Innoven Capital india Private Limited amounting to INR 550 million in two tranches
as per detajls below. The loan is secured against existing and future fixed assets, current and non-current assets including all brand, intellectual property and intellectual
property rights with respect to these movables, present and future accounts, cash flows, recaivables, book debts, revenues, equipment, inventory, contract rights or rights to
payment of money, leases, license agreements, franchisee agreements, goodwill, uncalled capital, general intangibles, documents, instruments {including any promissory
notes), chattel paper, cash, deposit accounts, fixtures, lettar of credit rights, securitizs and all other investment praperties, supparting obligations and financial assets ate. Tha
loan is further fully secured by way of corporate guarantee of the holding company, Refer tabls below for rate of interest, tenure and terms of repayment:

Also, Innoven Capital India Private Limited also has right to subseribe sueh number of Series C2 compulsorily convertibie cumulative prefarence shares of Qravel Stays Private
Limited {i.e. the Holding Company) that amounts ta INR 36 million to be issued by the Holding Company at subseription price of INR 394,887,97 per share. The right to subscribe
Is exercisable in whole or in part at any time and from time ta time on or before the expiration date of 8 years. The loan were repaid in full during the year,

Term Loan 1 Term Loan 2
Amaunt of the sanctioned facility INR 300 Mn IR 250 Mn
Amount outstanding as at balance sheet date il il
Loan tenure 31 months 36 months
Rate of interest/effective rate of interast 15%/21% 158%/16%
Repayment instalments and amount 31 equally monthly 34 equally manthly
instalment of INR instalmant of INR
9.68 Mn starting from  7.35 Mn starting
Oct 2016 from July 2017

b. During the year 2018-2019, OYO Midmarket Investment LLP had taken term Indian rupees term loan amounting to INR 150 million from Blacksoil Capital Private Limited. The
loan is secured against the (i) exelusive eharge on the current assets, moveable assets and fixed assets of the borrawer bath present and future [ii} exclusgive charge an all rights,
title, interest, benefits, claims and demands in respect of all deposit accounts, mutual fund, fised deposits and bank account maintained with any banks and financial
institutians including the borrowsr accounts both present and future (iii) exclusive charge on all receivable accrue to the barrower from any source, baoth present and futurs.
The Ipan were repaid in full during the year. Refar tabla balow for rate of interast, terure and terms of repayment,

Amaunt of the sanctioned farility INR 150 Mn
Amount outstanding as at balance sheet date Wil

Loan tenure 60 months
Rate of interast/Effective rate of interest 165%/16.65%
Repayment instalments and amount 53 equal monthly

instalment af INR
3.587 Mn starting
from 31 August 2019

c. During the year, the OY0 Hospitality UK Limited has taken term loan from Greensills Capital [UK) Limited amounting to USD 343,27 millions after deduction of processing fee.
The loan is secured against (i) all proceeds receivables {1i) by ways of first fined charges, all its bank account (Iii] by way of first floating charge, all the assets expressed to be
mortgaged, charged or assigned. The loan is further secured by corporate guarantes by Orave| Stays Singapore Pta Ltd {subsidiary company].

The loan carries interest rate at 5.75% over LIBOR per annum.

The loan 15 repayabie in 12 equal monthly instalments starting from November 2021.

d. During the year, the OYD Hospitality Netherland B.V. has taken term loan from Deutsche Bank AG amounting to Euro 126.75 million after deduction of processing fee. The
loan is secured against a first ranking Company's pledge agreement covering (disclosed and undisclosed) (i) Bank account receivables (i) receivables under Insurance Palicies
{iit} intercompany raceivablas {iv) trade receivables (v) movables and (vi} acquisitian proceeds {vii] pledge over the shares of O¥0 Vacation Homes Helding BV,

The loan carries interest rate i.e percentage rate per annum which is the aggregate of the applicable
{a) Margin i.e. 5.25% per annum and
{b) EURIBOR n relation taany loan in Eura

The loan facility were taken for a period of 6 (six) years and repayable in full on the termination date.

| Gurugram
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@, During the year 2018-13, the Guerrilla Infra Solutions Private Limited has entered into finance |lease agreement with Via Projects Private Limited amounting to INR 46.50
millian in two tranches as per details below. The loan is unsacured.

Arrangement 1 Arrang t2
Amount of the sanctionad facility INR 20.00 Mn INR 26,50 Mn
Amount outstanding as 2t balance shest date Rs 14.71 million s 19.90 million
Arrangement tenure 60 months 60 maonths
Rate of interest 18.00% 18.00%

Repayrment instalments and amount

54 egually monthly
instalment of INR

54 mgually monthly
instalment of INR

0.74Mn starting from 0.72Mn starting

Sept 2018 from Oct 2013
158. Borrowings- Current
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured
-fram financial institution (refer nate a and b 1,355.38 242.10
- bank everdraft* 0.05 192.43
- liability towards bill discounting”® - 135,83
-feom athers (refer note c) - 207.97
Unsecured
- ligbility towards bill discounting (refer note d} 342.65 =
-frarm athers = 5.50
1,699.08 783.83

a) During the year 2018-19, OY0O OTH |nvestments | LLP has taken term loan from Blacksoll Capital Private Limited amounting to INR 250 million in twe tranches as per details
below. The loan is secured against:

{i] & first ranking exclusive charge on the current assets, movable assets and fixed assets of the Barrawer, both present and future;

{ii) @ first ranking exclusive charge on all rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Barrower in respect of all its deposit accounts, mutual funds,
fixed deposits and bank accounts maintained with any banks and Financial Institutes including the Borrower Accounts, both present and future;

{iii] a first ranking axclusive charge on all the receivables accruing to the Borrower from any source, both present and future:

{iv) a first ranking exclusive charge over the Security Cover; and

(v} Demand Promissory Nates

Subsequent to year ended 31 March 2020, the entire loan has been repaid. Refer table below for rate of interast

Term Loan 1 Term Loan 2
Amount of the sanctioned facility INR 120 Mn INR 130 ivin
Amount outstanding as at balance sheat date Nil INR 57.44 Mn
Rate of interest 16% 16%

b) During tha year, the OYO Haspitality Netherland BV, has taken Revolving Facility from Deutsche Bank AG. The loan is secured against a first ranking Company’s pledgs
agreement covering (disclosed and undisclosed) (i) Bank account recelvables (i) receivables under Insurance Policies (iii) intercompany receivables {iv) trade receivables (v)
movables and (vi] acquisition proceeds {vii} pledge over the shares of OY 0 Vacation Homes Holding B.V.

The [oan carries interest rate i.e percentage rate per annum which is the aggregate of the applicable

{a) Margin i.e 3.25% per annum and

{b} EURIBOR in relation to any loan in Euro

The loan facility were repayable on the last day of its interest period.

c} During the year 2018-19, InnowE ine. has taken laans fram Ambiga Subramanian amaunting ta INR 207.97 millian {USD 3 millian}. The loan is secured against the pledgs aver
the shares in favour of lender under appropriate and duly executed documents to that effect. The loan carry interest @2% per quarter for the actual principal amount
outstanding from time to time. The interest is payable quarterly. The loan were repaid in full during the year.

d} During the year, 0Y0 Technology and Hospitality Japan KK has taken unsecured bill discounting facility from Paygent. The facility 1s repayable in 37 days from the service dats
and carries interest/fee @ 2.76% per annum.

*Refer note 5C for the details of charge over mutual funds.

16. Lease i i

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balance as at 1 April 2019 15,867 52 -
Additions during the year £2,351.11 i
Interest accrued during the year 4,253.97 =
Payment during the year (28,100.31)

Reversal of lease liabilities (refer note 50) [61,534.66)

Fareign currency translation reserve {266.58)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 12,611.05 -
Nan-current portion £,213.51

Current potion 6,397.54

™
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16A. Employee defined banefit obligation- Non-current

As at As at
31 March 2020 21 March 2019
Employee benefit abligations
- Gratuity {refer nate 33) 103.79 B2.55
- Compenzatad absences . -
103.79 82,55
168. Employee defined benefit obligation- Current
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Employee benefit obligations
- Gratuity {refer note 33) 46.20 147
- Compensated absences 305.038 12.30
351.23 13.77
174, Deferred tax liabilities (net)
As at Asar
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred tax liabilities 3,210.63 -
3,210.69 -
The analysis of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities is as follows:
Depreciation on property, plant and equiprment (including right of use assets) 13.08 £
Amortisation on intangible assets 3,064.60 -
Fair valuation of investments {6.71) -
Carried forward losses (132.53) =
Others 272.25 -
Met deferred tax liabilities 3,210.69 -
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities [net):
Opening balance an 1 April - -
Tax incorne recognised during the yaar recognised in profit and loss [236.73) {0.25)
Deferred tax acquired in business combinations 342251 -
Qther adjustments 24,51 0.5
Closing balance on 31 March 3,210.69 -
The reconciliation between the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the loss before tax and the income tax charge is summarised below:
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loss before tax (131,475.42) [23.270.79)
Enacted tax rates in India 34.944% 34.944%
Increase /| Decrease) in taxes on account of
Effect of unrecognised business loss =34 66% -35.30%
Effect of share of profit/{lass) in joint venturas -0, 24% 0.01%
Effect of differert tax rate applicable to group companies 0.09% 0.00%
Tax expense/credit recognised 0.18% -0.25%

The Group has tax losses that are available for offsetting for three years to indefinite years against future axable profits of the companies. The Graup has nat recognised any
deferred tax asset on these unutilised losses since there i€ no reasonable cartainity that there will be taxable profits in the future against which these assets will be realised.

178. Current tax liabilities (net}

Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Pravisian for income tax {net of advance tax) 47.73 57.13
47.73 57.13
18. Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
-total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 37) 26,55 35.03
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises * 16,792.48 6,227.08
Payable to related parties [refer note 34) 7,908.85 -
24,728.38 6,262.11

"eomprises of provision ameunting to INR 3,744.86, INR 566.97 millions, INR 180 million and INR 627,64 millions towards onerous contracts, termination/fexit of lease contract
with hotel partners, rental payment for the month of March and other vendor payments due to contract cancellations respectively due ta COVID 19,
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19A. Other non-current financial liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Security daposits received 3719 = R
Other financial liabilities* 470.31 -
Provision for preference dividend 0.0t 0,01
507.51 58.32
*includes assets retirement obligation (ARQ) amounting to INR 228,37 million,
198, Other current financial labilities
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Current maturity of long term laan (refer nate 154) 2.70 120,00
Security deposits received 301.71 30.63
Emplayee related payablas 1,414.12 1,477.74
Interest accrued on loan 51183 0.55
Other financial liabilities® 149.73 213.81
2,387.09 2,442.73
“includes assets retirement obligation [ARD) amounting to INR 17,16 million and provision amaunting to INR 72.82 related to COVID-19
20. Other non-current liabilitias
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Lease equalisation reserve - 162.98
- 162.98
21. Other current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advances from customers 1,838.45 433,44
Lease equalization reserve = 102.99
Statutory liabilities 182298 §23.39
Deferred revenue 837.12 55.69
Other liabilities 186.62 -
4,686.17 1,419.51

(This space has been intenticnaily left blank)
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22, Revenue from contract with customers

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of accommodation services 171,168.30 80,574 70
Commission from bookings 7.133.26 295,71
Cancellation incorne 918.92 248.73
Value added services 1.397.14 382.03
Sale of packages 1,890.12 975.02
Rental income 3,445.81 79.84
Food and beverages 1,276.95 610.64
Subscription incorne 183.49 30.43
Other opsrational revenue 2,248.57 123.62
Total 139,663.56 63.320.72
22.1 Contract balances
For the yoar ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Contract assets 32.95 203,60
Contract liabilities 2,676.57 49313

Contract assets are recogmsed when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts with customers. Unbilled recervables are classified as cantract
assets {only act of invoicing is pending) when thera is unconditional right ta receiva cash, and only passage of time is required, as per cantractual terms.

Contract liabilities are racognised when there is excess of invoicing aver revenue earned on contracts with customers. Deferred revenue are classified as contract
liabilities where invoicing was made in advance or the advance received from the customers while performance of services is pending. Right of return assats and

refund liabilities are not present in contracts with customers.,

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 493.13 18731
Performance chligations satisfied in p years . -
13. Other income
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest fram hanks dzposits 230.21 334.10
Intarest income on bond 401,64 723.09
Interestincome on income tax rafund 523 0.34
Profit on sale of current investments 475.31 451.12
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 41.06 319.35
Prafiton sale of property, plant and equipment (nst) E 1249
Exchange difference {net} 9.12 23.88
Intarest income on security deposits 4.60 8.88
Miscellaneous income 300.80 13.58
Total 1,467.97 1,887.23
24, Operating expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Service compaonent of leasa 42,123.84 52,355.56
Lease rentals 30,250.34 1,078.72
Property consumaklas 2,696.72 965.11
Lass from bookings 12,178.18 663.71
Food expense 1,3549.27 551.85
Electricity and power cost 1,793.14 453,10
Subvention expenses 4,38 -
Other expenses 13,521.98 2,671.84
Total 104,327.65 58,745.93
25. Empl benefits expense
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and banus refer note 38| 48,183.22 12.501.69
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 33)* 924.94 1,765.84
Share based payment expense (refer note 40) 402.86 154.56
Gratulty expense (refer note 33)7 4851 ain
Staff welfare expenses 1,467.59 184,50
Total 51,027.12 14,647.70

*includes severance and other payments of INR 1101.23 million due to COVID 19 (refer nate 50)
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26. Depreciation and amortization expense

For the year endad

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of property, plant & squipmant (refer note 3} 2,099.30 58219
Depreciation of right of use assets {refer note 34) 27,316.03 B
Amartization of other intangible assets (refer note 4) 1,610.31 118.84
Total 31,025.64 701.03

27. Finance cost

For the year ended

For the year endad

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest an loan 2,673.50 92.69
Interest on |ease liabilities* 4,301.35
Other processing fees 49665 -
Bank charges 123.36 12.78
Total 1,599.86 105.47
“includes INR 7.38 million in respect of finance lease obligation.
28. Other gxpenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Power and fuel 83.58 2158
Rent for affice building and warehouse (shart term lease) 1,837.58 544,45
Office expenses 740.94 17451
Rates and taxes 1.497.44 130.40
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 1,914.87 286.36
- Computer and others 289.80 42.15
Advertising and sales promation 10,819.47 2038561
Commission and brokerage 8,336.02 238239
Insurance expenses 67.28 8.96
Business development expenses 546.06 14032
Travelling and conveyance 4,772.97 1,877.05
Communication cost 808.19 28431
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {nat) 1,735.62 -
Customer support 2,142.60 1,287.73
Legal and professional fee” 11,526.81 2,726.35
Payment to auditors 114.65 30.64
Aliowance for expacted cradit loss 2,184.75 219.85
Provision for doubtful advances 347.37 -
Impairment of goodwill 763.40 -
Impairment of ather intangible assets 416,57 -
Impairment of joint venture 116,81 .
Provision for obsolete inventory 18.57 -
DOutsaurced manpower 1,769.95 =
Information technology expenses 1,238.16 409.10
Subscription charges 87.76 3270
Recrutment & training expenses 3,814.14 1,462.05
Freight, postage and courier 251.46 120.86
Bad debts/advances written aff (refer note 50) 354,22 -
Miscellaneous expenses 160.19 62.58
Total 59,766.03 14,283.61
*Includes stock option granted to consultants of subsidiaries amounting to Nil {31 March 2019: 4.06 million).
Paymant to Auditars
As Auditors
- Audit fee 114.65 30.64
- Tax audit fae =
Reimbuyrsment of expenses = =
114.85 30.64
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29, Exceptional items

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Exceptional Items (refer note 50) 17.950.14
Total 17,950.14
30. Tax expense
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax 54.43 57.40
Deferred tax {236.73) {0.25)
(182.30) 57.15
31. Other comprehensive income
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability{assets) 31.23 (8.77]
Income tax 5 ]
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 3,196.51 (1,595.62)
Imcome tax = 5
3,228.34 (1,604.39)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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32. Earning per share
Basic and diluted earning per share {EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year,

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computatians:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings {106,013.71) (17,329.58)
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereon = {0.00)
Loss attributable to equity holders (106,013.71) (17,329.58)
Weighted average number of equity shares at the year end 126,744 115,693
Less: Weighted average shares held with the ESOP Trust - 16.720)
Weighted average number of equity shares at the year for the calculation of loss per share 126,744 108,973
Loss per share

Basic {836,439.70) {159,026.35)
Diluted* {836,439.70) (159,026.35)

*There are potential equity shares as on 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 in the form of emplayee stock options and share warrants. As these are anti-dilutive, they are
ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share and accordingly, the diluted earnings per share 15 same as basic earnings per share.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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33. Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan : Provident fund

During the year, the Group has recognized INR 376 70 million (2018-1%: INR 148,89 million| as contribution to Employee Provident Fund and Employes State Insurance in the Statement of Prafit and Loss,

Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit pratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 for its employeess in india and certan benefit plans in forsgn jurisdictions. Under this legislation, employes wha has complated five
years of service is entitled to speafic benefit. The tevel of benetit provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement /termination age subject to maximum monetary limit of INR 2 million far

payments in india and as per the local laws in foreign jurisdictions, The planis not funded by the group.

The followng tables scummaries the componants of net banefit expense recognized in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheat for the respective plans:

Changas in the present value of the defined banefit obligation (unfunded gratuity) is as follows:

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 8402 3154
Current service cost 4583 g
Interest expense 258 241
Remeasurement [gain}/ loss - OCI [23.48| a7
Benefit paid (5.24| -
Transler of habidity from geoup companies 46.18 255
Defined beneht obligations at the end af the year 149.39 #4302
A t in of Profit and Loss:
Asat As 2t
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 4583 g
Net interest expense 258 241
Amountrecognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 48.51 41.11
Amount recognizad in other comprehensive income:
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Remeasurement of net benefit liability/ assat (13 48) 877
The prinapal assumptions used in determiming gratuity and leave encashmant obligations for the Graup's plans are shown below:
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate in %) 3.15%-5.66% T.05%-7.43%
Salary Escalation {in %} e 10.00% 810%: 10.00%
Withelrawal rate (in ) 4.295%-42.00% 30.00%-36.00%
Mortahity rate of |ALM 2012-14 1003 100%
The impact of sensitivity due te changes in the s-snifu:am actuanal assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is as follows:
Far the year ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Discount rate
- Inerease by 0.50% (5.42) 11.93]
- Decrease by 0.50% 817 2m
Salary escalation rate
- Increase by 1% 1.5 377
- Decrease by 1% 16.31) 1357}
Attrition rate
- Increase by 5% {15.23} {11.61}
Decrease by 5% 19.76 14.13

The sensitivity analytes above have been determined based an a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonabile changes in key assumptions occurring at the end af the reparting

period,

The follawing payments are expected towards defined banafit in future years:

: Asat As at

Fartagan 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Year 1 15.56 147
Year 2 16.10 7.08
Year 3 15.05 10.73
Yeard 1713 12,29
YearS 1431 1595
After Sth Year 101.14 8572
Total expected payments 184.29 134.14

rug
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4. Related parnty transactions
3] eames of related parties and refated party relationship
Other reloted parties with whom ransoctions hove taken ploce

lount veniure

Key Management Persannel

b} Related party tranwaetions:

Mauntainia Developers and Hospitakity Private Limited
OY0 Mountainia UK Limited

V0 Moustainea | LK Limited

O¥0 Mountainia US4 Ine

OY0 My Praferred UK Lmited

00 Wy Profaerred Hospitality |1 UK Limited:

OO My Preferred Hospitality 11 UK Limited

Multituce Infrastructieres Private Limited

MNeeldean Developers Prrvate Limited

Mypraferred Transfarmatian and Hasprtality Private Linvted
OV My Breferred Haspitality INC.

Marina WendiaeF invest 1l GmbH

Ivlr Ritesh Agarwal (Darector]

M Abhishek Gupta |Cheef financral afficer )

Iir. Ashmh Garg (Company secretary|

Rlr. Adetya Gosks ndependent Director) (wef 13 December 2018]
Air. Betsy Athuns {Indepandent Direztar) (wef 18 November 2019

Key management personnel & relative of Key management

Jaint Ventures
personnel
For the year ended Farthe year ended Farthe year anded For the yesr endad
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Investment during the year
Wyoreferred Transfarmatian and Haspitality Private Limated < 3421.9% -

Devefopers and ity Private Limited 140127 - -
OV Mauntaima UK Limited 183138
OY0 My Preferred UK Limited 1,609.50
Manna Wendtorf Inwest || GmbH 4850
Deemed Ivestment during the year
QY0 Mauntaini USA Inc EN G = .
Secondmant fees charged

pers and Private Limited 10.83
Rendering of sarvices
Mountainia Develapers and Haspatality Private Limited 4619 E =
Heeldeep Devalopers Private Limitad 753 - -
Multitude Infrastructures Prvate Limited 483
Dperating expenses
OO by Preferred Hospitality inc. 42745
Sorviea taken
VO Ry Preferred Hospitality 1 UK Lmited 155.94 - -
Rental income y
Mauntaina Develapers and Hospitaldy Private Limated 207
Purchase of service [R=nt)
Mypreferred Transfarmation and Hospitality Private Limited 81664
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [including capital work in prograss)
Typreferred Transfarmation and Haspitality Private Limited 127822
Sabe of property, plant and equipment. [incuding capital work in progress]
Mypreferred Transformaton and Hospitality Private Limited 1,292 84
Sale of ather current assets
O¥0 My Preferred Hospitality inc 53378
Fund received
Mypreferred Transformation and Hospitalety Private Lirmted 20017 - 5
V0 by Preferred Hospitality INC T43 51 - =
Payment made an behall of group companies
V0 ety Preferred UK Limived 101 h
OO Mowitaima UK Limited 673 . ” =
OO0 Mountamia il UK Lemited 009 . & .
V0 Py Preferred Hospitality 1| UK Limited 0.0% - .
YD Mountainia USA inc 10037 . % <
Maountainia Developers and Hospitality Provate Limited 61.73 . = &
Mypreferred Transformation and Hospitality Private Lemsted 110505 = =
Meeldeep Developers Private Limatad oo .
Payment made by group companies on behalf of ws
Mauntainms Developers And Hospataliny Pravate Limated 60,99 -
Heeld eep Developers. Privare Limited 298
Miypreferred Transformation & Hospitality Provate Limated 836113
Mulutude Infrastructuies Private Limited 376
Purchasa of Invantory
Mypraferred Transformation & Hospitality Private Limated 613
Sale of inventary
Mypreferred Transformation and Hospitality Private Limited 213
Espanses incurred on behslf of group companies
Mountainia Developees and Hospatalitg Private Lirited 24.30
ta kay n Lig

Mr Ritesh Agarwal 115 601
Mr. Abhishek Gupta . 87,37 2835
hr Ashish Garg = 2.86 2.38
Mr. Aditya Gesh (Independent Director) 12.06
L 5.39 -

r. Betoy Athins (Indeperdent Director)
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c} Balance outstanding at the year end

Jaint Venture
Az at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance receivables [refer note 68]

Mlountamia Developers and Hospitality Prevate Limited 787

OO Mountama LK Limited 6.68

OO Mountaima || UK Limited 0.12

O Mountainia WSA INC 100.97

O¥0 My Preferred LI Limited a8y

Y0 My Prefered Hosprtalty 1] UK Limited a1z

Multituds Infrastructures Private Limated 107

Preeldeen Developers Prouste Limited 495

Trade payables [rafor note 18]

Mypreforred Transforrmation and Hospitality Private Lsted 727107

OW0 My Preferred Hosgitality INC. 63T 78

*Hemuneration 1o hey mansgerol persannel does not snclude the proviseons made for gratuity as they are determmed on an actuanal bass and ESOP eost far the Group a5 2 whalz
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35. Leasos
The Group has lease contracts for Fngs and hotel properties. teases of buildings generally have lease terms between L and 4 years, while hotel roams generally have fease tarms between 1and 4 years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigring and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts require the Group to maintai certain financial ratin,

The Group has several lease tantracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negatiated by management to prowde fesibility in ging the | d 1 folio and align with
the Group's husiness needs. Management exsrcises sgnificant judgement in determining whether these axtension and terminatian options are reasonably certain to be exerdsed (refer note 45)

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months o less. The Group applies the ‘short-tarm |sase’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Amount recognised in profit & |ass account

Partitiilars 31March 2020
Depreciation charge on right-of use assets 27.316.03
Interest expense 430135
Expense related toshart term legses 32,087.92
Total 63,705.30
36.C i and Conti
a, Contingent Liabilities
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

1] Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt;

a) Tax matters in appeal: Service tax 564 35 5a3.87

b) Tax matters in appeal: Income tax 42,93 -

) Othars a1
It) Bank guarantees 2,006.23 16259
I} Carporate guarantees 72500 125.00

|a} The Holding company has received & demand cum shaw cause natice from the office of the Commissioner of Service Tax, dated 14 March 2017 towards addinonal service tas labdlity amounting INA 14781
te be discharged as an "Aggregator”, for the period 1 April 2015 ta 31 March 2016, The Holding company had paid a sim of INR 127,38 as an "aggregator” with respective returns in the financial year 2015-16
under protest and simultanesusly challenged the constitutional validity of such notification in Celhi Faigh Court. The Hon'ble court has issued 3 Favaurabla stay for the recovery proceedings aganst such show
cause natice

Siemilar notice dated 19 July 2013 has been received of INR 543.92 for the period 1 Aped 2016 to 30 June 2017 and INR 20.43 for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 towards tax liability, The Holding
company challenged the constitutional validity of such netification in Delhi High Court. The Hom'ble court has izsued a favourable stay for the recovery proceedings agamst such show cavse notice. The
management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will net have any significant impact on the Growp's financizl position.

{b} TDS survey procesdings were carried on the Holding company in January 2020, Pursuant to survey proceedings, demand of INR 33.32 million was raised on the Holding company on account of nen-
deduction and payment of tax deducted at source {TDS) on mindmum guarantes paid Lo hotels partner during the period April to December 2019, The Halding company has filed an appeal before CIT{A) against
the demand arder as the Company befieves that T0S is not applicable on minimum guarantes amount, The management believes that ultimate cutcome this proceedings will not have any significant impact on
the Group's financial position

TS survey proceedings were tarmied on ane of the subsidiary Compary (OY0 Hotels and Homes Private Limited) in January 2020, Pursiant to survey proceedings, demand of INR 968 million was raised on the
subsidiary company on account of non-deduction and payment of tax deducted at source (TD5) an minimum guarantes paid to hotels partner during the period April to Decernber 2019, The subsidiary
ctompany has filed an apoeal before CIT{4) against the demand order as the subsidiary company balizves that TOS is net spplicable on minimum guarantes ameunt The management belisves that ultimate
outcame this procesdings will nat have any significant impact on the Group's financal position

{c] [c) Variaus sales agents in vanous countnes have raised demand of INR 26.95 million on termination of their contract, Few employees have also rased demand for terminatien of contract amounting to INR
15.16 million. The Grougp is in Igation in respective country far all cases, The management believes that ultimate outcame this praceedings will not have any significant impact on the Greup's financial
pasition,

(d) Corpor ate guarantee amounting to INR 550 Million has been given by the Holding Campany to Innoven Capital India Brivate Limited against borrowangs taken by ane of the subsidiary company. Further,
corparate guarantes of INR 125 milkian and INR 50 million has been given ta Connect Residuary Private Limited and SRE Equipment Finance Limited respectively agalnst certain assets taken on operating lease,
(2] The Helding company will provide financial support to its subsidiaries, so as to meet their habibities as and when the same s requined.

b. Capital & other commitments

Asat Agat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Propeity, plant & equipment {net of advance)* 1,552.15 BES.T9

*Tha above disclosure is based on the open Purchase Order (PO) repart as on 31 March 2020, however, the Group does not assume receipt af supplies for major of such PO's due to change in business model
subsequent to vear ended 31 March 2020, :

(This space has been intenthionally left blank)
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37. Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
The dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent information

available with the Group is given below:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Amount due and payable at the year end

- Principal 2417 33.89
- Interest on above principal 0.63 0.03
Payments made during the year after the due date

- Principal 161.10 106.8%
- Interest 130 -
Interest due and payable for principals already paid 1.75 1.11
Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at year end 2.38 1.14

38. Capitalization of expenditure
During the year, the Group has capitalized including intangible under development the following expenses considering its capital nature. Accordingly, expenses disclosed
under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the Groug.

For the yearended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages and bonus 303.42 897.28
303.42 897.28

28, Treasury shares
The Group has created a ESOP Trust for providing share based payments to its employees. The Group treats the trust asits extension and shares held by trust are trested
as treasury shares. Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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40. Stock option plans

A. Employee stock option plans

The Group, through its Holding Company, provides share-based payment schames to its employees. The Board of Directors of the Companny, on 24 Decernber 2013, has approved the Equity Settied
ESOP Scheme 2013 (ESOP Scheme 2013} for issue of stock options to the key employees of the campany. The Board of Directors 2lso approved the incorporation af trust for this purpose in the narme
and style of Oravel Ermployee Welfare Trust in its Board Meeting held on 24 December 2013,

During the year 2018-19, Board of Directars in their board meeting dated 30 May 2018, approved the amendment to existing ESOP Scheme 2013, The Sharehalders accord their approval en the same
inthe general meeting dated 10 July 2018, The changes in the ESOP plan includes various aspects relating to vesting, scenanos relating to employees exit on various account.

During the year, pursuant to demerger, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company had mtroduced 1 new ESOF policy in ESOP Scheme 2018 whereby, instead of allatting shares to existing Oravel
Employee Welfare Trust ("Trust”) upfrant, a virtual pool of such ESOPs has been created and instead of having shares pre-allotted to tha Trust, it was proposed that anly upon exercise of ESOP by 2
quabfying employee {and receipt of the axeraise price), will allot the requisite sharels) to the Trust. In order to fallaw a unifarm ESOP policy, Company has reduced the share capital held by the Trust
undler the old ESOP policy hald as of 1 Mevember 2019 other than any portion of the share capital which has been identified by the Trust as being for the benafit of a specific qualifying employes,

Further, during the year on 31 March 2020, Group had issued an offer to certain former and present employess holding Employee Stack Options (ESOPs) thereby providing them an option 16 transfer
the equity shares on their behalf, for their benafit, The Company has facilitated the sale of shares (388 shares on oxercise by certam employees) to a third party on employess’ bekalf. This exercise of
shares by @mployees was aptional and not mandatory. Upan exercise, Campany has issued equity shares and these shares are then transferred to a third party. These stacks/shares are nerther
purchased by the Commpany nor resulted in any transfer of cash or assets. In short, this transacuion has not created any settlement obligation on the Company [either contractual or construed), Basis
above, ESDPs are concluded to be equity-settied.

The contractal life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise pariad) of options granted under both schemes 15 4 years. The schemes has 4 years of vesting schedule with warious gramt options
wiz, monthly, quarterly, half yearly, yearly and two yearly. There are no cash settlement alternatives.

Option can be exercised as per the vesting Schedule, upon grant of the Optisn and Corpliance with term and condition, after option have been vestad {but not expired/lapsed) for which no prios
exercise has been made.

The Group has considered the fair value of equity shares for the purpose of ESOP accounting by using “backsolve” methad adopting the waterfall approach based on the Option Pricing Model {'OPM')

Inputs used for valuation are as follows:
a] Asset value: The assets price 1s considered a5 the implied equity value of the group such that per share fair valus of Seres F COPS equals the per share price at which Series F CCPS were issued by the

Group,

b} Exercise Price: Each breakpaint computed using the waterfall approach is considered a5 the exercise price,

c} Time to Maturity: Time ta maturity is considerad a5 3 43 years

d} Valatlity: A fised price volatility of the publicly listed comparable companies in India has been considered.
) Risk free rate: Rish free rate s based on yield in India with an expiry of 3 and 3.5 years

Plan Name Vesting Period Start Vesting pariod IEkmise period Vesting Frequency
Plan 1-Monthly vesting 0 CIHf On Grant Date 4 5 Manthly
Plan 2-tenthly vesting & Moenths Cliff Six Month from Grant Date 4 5 Manthly
Plan 3-Half ¥early vesting 6 Months Chff Six Month from Grant Date 4 5 Half Yearly
Plan 4-Quarterly vesting 1 Year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Disarterly vesting
Pan 5-Ouarterly vesting 1 Year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly vesting
Plan 5-Guarterly Vesting with 1 Year CIff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Plan 7-Yearly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Yearly Vest
Plan 8-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Chif One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Flan 8-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff One year from Grant Data 4 5 Cuarterly Vesting
Plan 10-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Chiff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Plan 11-Quartarly Vesting with 1 Year CIiff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Plan 12-Yearly Vesting with 1 Year CHif one year from Grant Date 4 5 Yearly Vesting
Plan 13-Oarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Plan 14-Cwarterly Vesting with 1 year Chiff One year fram Grant Date 4 5 Quartarly Westing
Plan 15-50% at end of 2nd year & rest at and of 3rd year Twe year from Grant Date 3 5 Yearly Vesting
Plan 16-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Ciff Qne year from Grant Date 1 o Guarterly Vesting
Plan 17-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year CIiff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vesting
Plan 18-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Ciiff One year from Grant Data ] 5 Cuarterly Vestng
Plan 19-Quartery Vesting with 1 year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterly Vestmg
Plan 20-Ouarterhy Vesting with 1 year Cliff One year from Grant Date 4 5 Quarterlv\l'estulg
Plan 21-Quarterky Vesting with 1 year CIiff One year from Grant Date 4 & Quarterly Vesting
Plan 1-Monthly vesting O Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of optiens ‘Weighted Average N, of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price {INR}
Cutstanding at the baginning of the vear 401 10 411 10
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year - 10 10
Outstanding at the end of the year 401 10 401 10
Exercisable at the end of the year 411 1 401 10
Weighted average remaining contractual life Wil
Fair value of stock options INR 3
Plan 2-Monthly vesting 6 Manths Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNo. of options Weighted Average Mo. of options Weighted Average
Enercise Price |INR) Exarcise Price (INR)

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 2,551 5172 2576 5172
Granted during the year = =
Farfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year B2 5,172 25 5172
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2469 5172 3,551 5172
Exareisable at the end of the year 2485 5172 2,551 5172
Weighted average ramaining contractual Iife il

Fair value of stack aptions

IMNR 765 to INR 859
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Plan 3-Half Yearly vesting 6 Months Cliff

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. of options Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 27 5,172 28 5,172
Granted during the year =
Farfeited during the vear - -
Exercised during the year . - 1 5,172
Outstanding at the end of the year 27 5172 27 5,172
Enarcisable at the end of the vear 27 5,172 27 5,172
Weighted average rermaining contractual life Nil
Far value of stack options INR 732 to INR 853
Plan 4-Quarterly vesting 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31march 2015
lio. of aptions Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price [INR) Exercise Price {INR)
Outstanding at the heginning of the year 254 33,986 279 33,986
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year g s s :
Exercised duning the year 57 13,986 25 33,986
Cutstanding at the end of the year 197 33,986 254 33,986
Exercisable at the end of the year 197 33,986 254 33,986
Werghted average remaining contractual ife il
Fair value of stock options IMF 4,844 to INR 29,729
Plan 5-Quarterly vesting 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. of options Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR] Exercise Price (INR)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 71 50,000 74 50,000
Grantad during the year - - - -
Farfewed dunng the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 3 50,000 E} 50,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 48 50,000 71 50,000
|Exercisable at the end of the year 48 50,000 71 50,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life Hil
Fair value of stock options INR 23,009 to INR 32,174
Plan &-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
No. of options Weighted Average Mo. of options Waighted Average
Exercise Price (I NA] Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year & 109,620 El 109,620
Granted during the year . - &
Forfeited during the year - - -
Exercised during the year 0 109,620 5 103,620
Outstanding at the end of the year 4 109,620 ] 103,610
Exercisable at the end of the year 4 109,620 4 108.620
Weighted average remaining contractual life il
Fair value of stack options INR 12,803 ta INR 15,210
Plan 7-Yearly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
No. of options Weighted Average MNo. of options Weighted Average
Exgreise Price (INR) Exercise Price {INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year PE] 109,630 26 109,620
Granted during the year - . 2
Farfeited during the year 1 109,620
Exercised during the year - 2 108,620
Outstanding at the end of the year 23 109,620 23 105,620
Exercisable at the end of the year 23 108,620 23 1{1.620
Weighted average remaining contractual life il
Fair value of stock options INR 7,925 ta INR 16,310
Plan 8-Quarterly Westing with 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Mo, of options Weighted Average Mo, of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exnegrcise Price (INR}
Quitstanding at the beginning of the year 846 190,359 B68 130,359
Granted dunng the year . - -
Farfeited during the year = 4 194,359
Exercised during the year 85 190,359 18 190,359
Outstanding at the end of the year 761 190,353 46 190,355
Exercisable at the end of the year 714 190.359 S84 190,359

Weighted avarage iemaming contractual life
Fanr value of stock aptions

2 manths
INR 76,150 to INA 105,175
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Plan 9-Quartarly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff

31 March 2020 31March 2019
No. of options Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price {(INR) Exercise Price (INE,}__]
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 45 323,611 45 323,611
Gramad durmg the year Z
Forfeited during the year 1 323,611 . .
Exercised duning the year 13 323,651 0 323,611
Outstanding at the end of the year 32 323,611 45 323,611
Exercisablz at the end of the year 32 524,611 35 323,811
‘Weighted average remaining contractual life il
Fair value of stock options INR 54,685 ta 1NR 67,037
Plan 10-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNo. of aptions Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price {INR Exercise Price (INR]
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 17 342,646 18 342,646
Granted during the year . e = -
Farfeited during the year - - - -
Exercized during the year E] 342,646 2 342,646
Crutstanding at the end of the year 14 342,646 17 342,646
Exerosable at the end of the year 14 342,646 14 342,646
Weighted average remaining sontractual ife il
Fair value of stock options IMR 52,324 toINR 63,123
Plan 11-Quarterly Vesting with 1 Year Ciiff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of aptions Weighted Average No. of options Weighted fverage
Exercise Price (INR) Ewercise Price (INR]
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 302 380,718 358 380,718
Granted during the year - . - .
Forfeited during the year 4 380,718 i 380,718
Exercised during the year 55 380,718 ig 380,718
Qutstanding at the end of the year 243 380,718 302 380,718
Exercisable at the end of the year 243 380,718 230 380.718
Weighted average remarning contractual hfe Nil
Fair value of stack aptions INR 40,797 to IMR 56,766
Plan 12-Yearly Vesting with 1 Year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNo. of options Weijghted Average Mo. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercisa Price [INR]
Dutstanding at the beginning of the year 22 380,718 26 380,718
Granted during the year % B A
Forfaited during the year - 2 380,718
Exercised during the year - - 2 380,718
Qulstanding at the end of the year 12 JB0,718 22 380,718
Enercisable at the end of the year 22 380,718 18 180,718
Weighted sverage remaining contractual hfe il
Fair vahue of stock options INR 1,955 to fNR 56,129
Plan 13-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Ciff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of options. Weighted Average Mo. of options Weighted Average
Engrcise Price (INR} Exercise Price (INR)
|Quistanding at the beginning af the year 363 335,655 320 335,655
Granted during the year 63 335,655 a3 335,655
Fardeited durinE the year 47 335,655 -] 335,655
Exercisad durinE the year 36 335,655 14 335,655
Outstanding at the end of the year 343 335,655 363 335,855
Exercisable at the end of the year 161 335,655 142 335,655
Waighted average remaining contractual life 1 year b months
Fair value of stock aptions INB 47,365 to INF 51,072
Plan 14-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
No. of options Weizhted Average Mo. of options Weizhted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercice Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning af the year 2833 304,868 797 304,888
Granted during the vear 1 394, 8E8 2,169 394,888
Fariaitad during the year 520 394,888 104 394,888
Exercised during the year 18 394,888 29 394 488
Dutstanding at the end of the year 2,296 324 888 2.833 394,888
Exercisable at the end of the vear 1,276 394,888 313 304,888

Weighted averaga remaining contractual Iife
Fairwahue of stock options

Plan 15 -50% at end of 2nd year & rest at end of 3rd year

1 ¥ears 9 Manths
INR 35,926 to INR 761 637

31 mMarch 2020

31 march 2013

No. of options Weighted Average M. of options Weighted Average
Exereise Price [INR) Exarcise Price (INR)
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 3 330,718 3 380,718
Grantad during the year 5 = =
Forfeited during the year 2 3
Exercised during the year 5 =
Cutstanding at the end of the vear 3 380,718
Exercisable atthe end of the year 2

Weighted average remaming contractual hife
Fair value of stock options

il
MR 77,778 to INR 80,375
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Plan 16-Ouarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Na. of options Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price [INR) Exercise Price (INA)
Cutstanding at the beginning of tha year Fr) 375,028 40 376,028
Granted during the year = . 32 376,028
Farfeited during the year [ 376028 =
Exercised during the year ¥i 376,028 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year ] 376,028 72 376,028
Exercisable at the erd of the year 33 376,028 10 376,028
Weighted average remaining contractual life 2 years
Fanr value of stock options INR 56,570 to INR 82,358
Plan 17-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of options Weighted Average No. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price [INR) Exercise Price (INR
Dutatanding at the beginning of the year 120 250,000 120 250,000
Granted during the yvear - - -
Forfeited during the year % x 7
Exercised during the year 12 250,000 £ -
Sutstanding at the end af the year 108 250,000 120 250,000
Exercisabla at the and of the year a1 250,000 53 250,000
Weighted average remaining contractual hfe Jyears
Farr value of stock aptions INR 77,365 to IMR 121,072
Plan 18-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Ma. of options Weighted Average Mo, of options weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR) |
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 177 1,270,337 - -
Granted during the year - - 177 1,270,337
Forfeited during the year 133 1,270,337 5 =
Exercised during the year # & s T
Outstanding at the end of the year 44 1,270,337 177 1,270,337
Exercisable at the end of the year B3 1,270,337 53 1,270,337 |
Weighted average remaining contractual life 2 years and 8§ months
Fair walue of steck options INR 253,307 to INR 447,221
Plan 13-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo, of options Weighted Average Mo. of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price [INR) Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 290 1,505.505 . ¥
Granted during the year 919 1,805,505 291 1,505,505 |
Forfeitad during the year 223 1,905,505 i 1,905,505
Exercised during the year [ 1,908,505 - -
Outstanding at the end of 1the year 285 1,905,505 290 1,905,505
Exercisable at the end of the year BS 1,905,505 . 1,906,505
Weighted average remaining contractual life 3 years and 2 months
Fairvalue of stock sptions INR 211,864 to INR 319,347
Plan 20-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mo. of options Weighted Average Na. of aptions Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3 = = 5
Granted during the year 1,990 2,782,500 =
Forfeited during the year a1 1.782.500 -
Exercised during the year - = =
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,948 2,782,504
Exercisable at the end of the year - . .
Weighted average remaining contractual fife 3 years and 5 manths
Farr value of stock aptions. MR 125,668 to INR 467,822
Plan 21-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff
31 March 2020 31 narch 2019
No. of eptions Weighted Average Mo, of options Weighted Average
Exorcise Price (INR) Exercise Price {INR)
Oulslandlm at the begin ning of the year - - - .
Granted during the year 12 3,710,000
Forfeited during the year = =
Exercivad during the year - .
Outstanding at the end of the year 12 3,710,000
Exercisable at the end af the year -

Weghted average remaining contraciual life
Fairvaluse of stock options.

3 yearsand 7 months
INR 75,901 to INR 315,339
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B, Employee stock option plans

The Group, through one of its subsidiary OY0 Tachnology & Hospitality {China] Pra Limited, provides share-hased payment schemes to its employees and employees of its subsidiary campanies.

Pursuant to the shareholding agreement entered an September 28, 2018, Sharehalders of OY0 Technology & Hospitality (China) Pte Limited approved the stock option scheme for employees, The
maximum aggregate numbers of shares that may be subject 1o the option is 178,378 under Employes stack options pool. During the year, 8,364 stock aptions were granted to employes of its

subsidary compames.

The contractual kfe {cormprising the vesting period) of options granted under scheme is 4 years, The scherme has 4 years of vesting schedule with quarterly grant aption. There are no cash settlament

alternatives

Option can be exercised as per the vesting schedule, upon grant of the option and cempliance with térm and condition, after option have been vestsd (but not exprred/iapsed) for which no priar

exercise has been made,

The Group has considered the far value of equity shares fer the purpose of ESOP accounting by wsing “hack

* method adepting the

PR

h based on the Optian Prcing Medel [‘GPA’),

Plan Name [\esting Period Start [Vesting period [Exercise period [Vesting Frequency |
Flan 1 -Quarterly Vesting with 1 year Cliff |One vear from Grant Date 1 4 | 5 | Quarterly Vesting

Plan 1-Quarterly Vesting with 1 year cliff

31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Particular No. of options Weighted Average Mo. of aptions Weighted Average
Exprcise Price (INA Emercise Price (INR) |

Oulstandmg atthe beginning of the year 11,256 34,661 5
Granted during the year 8,364 34,661 11,256 34,661
Forfeited during the year 4,132 34,661 -
@msed during the year - . -
Outstanding at the end of the year 15488 14,661 11,256 34,661
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,535 - - -

‘Weighted average remaining contractual life

Fair value of stock options

2 years and 4 months
INR 5,000 to 2,278

(This space has been intentionally left bionk)
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41, Fair values
Sat out below, 13 a comparisan by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's finanoal instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair

values:
Larrying walue Fair valug
As at Asat As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and lass
Investment in mutual funds 1578227 18,430.25 15.782.27 18,490.25
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost
Investment in bonds 63.65 9.522.28 7262 9,221.30
Security deposits 1,634.18 754.08 1.534.18 754,08
Taotal 17,480.10 28,766.61 17,489.07 2B,456.53
Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2015 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Financial Ii ties measured at amortized cost
Borrowings 27.958.78 ‘949,90 273548.78 49,90
Tatal 27.958.78 949.90 27,958.78 949.90

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, unbilled revenue, trade receivables, employee related payables and trade payables/payable to joint
wenture approximate the carmying amounts largely due to the short-term maturnties of these instruments. The Group's long term debt has been contracted at market rate of interest, accordingly, the
carrying value of such long term debt appronmate fair value Further, trade recenvable are periodically evaluated based on indivedual creditwarthiness of customers. Based onthis evaluation, the Group
recard far allowance for estimated losses an these recervables. As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the carrying value of such recovable, net of allowances approsimate the fair value

The fair walue of the financial assets and lrabilities is nchded at the amount at which the mstrument could be exchanged in a current transachion between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale

{This space has been intentonoily left biank]
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A2, Fair value hierarchy
The fallowing tabée presents fair value hierarchy of assets and labilities measured at fair value on a recurring bass,

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and ilabilities a5 at 31 March 2020

Fair value measuremant using
Date of valuation Total q‘;s::'::l::::::;::“":‘o::;u Significant ebservable inputs  Significant mhsemal:r nputs
Frofit ot lass) (FUTRL) {Level 2} (Level 3} jamartised cost)
Invesimentin mutual funds 31-par-20 1578227 1578227 4 -
Investment i bonds 3Nar20 7262 . - : 7262
Security depasits 31-Mar-10 163418 3 - 15634 18
Trade Recawables 31-Mat-10 131580 - . 131580
Qther financial asists 31-Mar-10 141827 - - 1418 27
Borrowings 31-Mar-10 2785378 - - 27,958 78
Lease Liablities 3)-Mar-20 1281105 . - 12601 05
Trade Payablas A1-Mar-10 24773 BE - . 24.728 86
Other financial liailitzs 31-Mar-20 23980 2,854 &
Quantitative disclosures far walue messurement hivrarchy far assets and Sabilities as at 31 March 2015
Fair yalus measumement using
Ouentad prices in sctive mardets 5 i & S 1
Date of valustian Tatal {Level 1] (Fair value through ANt b bl Ingats
Proit or loss{[FVTPL) fLevel 21 Level 3) (smortised cost)

Imvestrvent in mutual funds AlLhara13 1848025 13490.25 .
Imuestment in hands 31-Mar-13 213220 = ® 9,222.30
Security depasts nMdar-19 754 08 . 754 08
Trade Recawables arndar-19 128533 1,285 33
Other financial assoes EIRAETS L] 2,003 a6 2,093 45
Barrowings 2hMlar-13 43 - 248 90
Trade Payatiles 31-Nhar-i8 6262 11 826211
Other financial iabiines Flear-1% 5000 = d 250100

There are mo transfers between lsusis 1, 2 ond 3 during the year

The different level has been defined as follaws;
Speafic valuation rechmiques wied 10 walue fimancialinstrument Incude:
{i] Quated prices (unadjusted] in active market fer iwentical assets and I abihibes

Iy mgut ather than queted prices induded within Level 1that are observable for the assets or lial lity, esther directly (i 2. prices) or indirectly (1.2, derived from pricas

[ivd]) Input far the assets or liabilities !hat arg nat based on abservabie market data (unobservatie nput]

Assumptions:
(i) Fair value of investments has bean conskared a5 the quoted price i achive market

it} Fair value of cash and cash equivatents, Jeposits with tanks, and trade payables/payable ta jgint venture Approxsmate the carrying amounts largely dua to the short-tarm maturitie of these instruments.
[nijLang term debt has been cantracted at markst rote of interest, accordingly, the carrying walue of such long term dsit apprommate far value,
Inv] Trade recewabie are panodically evaluated based on mdwidual creditwerthiness of cusiomers, Based an this evaluation, allawance far astimated loises on thase recewables has besn reearded The carrpng value of such recewable,

nat of allawances spprasimate the far valus,

I¢) Fair walue of gther financial assets and abilities & inciuded a1 the amount at which the instrument cauld Be exchangedin a current transaction betiwean williag pirbes, sther tham in a forced or liowidation sale.

{This space has bees satentiaaclly left blank)
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Motes to consolidated financial staternents for the year ended on 31 March 2020
(A in Indian Rupees i , unless stated otherwise|

43. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial liabilities comprise trade payables, employee related liabilities and financial guarantes contracts, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Graug's
operztions and to provide guarantess to suppart its operations. The Group's financlal assets include trade and other recaivables and cash and short-term deposits that derve directly fram
its operations,

The Graup is exposad to market risk, credit risk and fiquidity risk. The Group's senior managernent overseas the management of these riske, The Group's senior management is responsible to
ensure that Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are entified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's
policies and risk objectives. All s for risk mar purposas dre carried out by specialist teams that have tha appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group's pelicy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized belaw,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future 2arnings, to fair value or to future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument, The value of a financial instrument
may change as a result of changes in the interest rate, foreign currency exchange rates or other market changes that affact market risk sensitive instruments. Markat risk is attributable ta all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments, foraign currency recenvable/payable and borrowings,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate barrowing including revolving and other line of credit. The Group's investments are primarily short term investments, which do not expose
it ta significant interest rate nsk. Certain borrowing are also transacted at ficed interest rates. If interest rates were to increase by 100bps as on 31 March 2020, additional net annusl interest
expense on floating rate barrowing would amount to INR 102 million.

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expesure will fluctuate because of changes in exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
exthange rates refates primarily to the Group's operations and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The exchange rate risk primarily arisas from assets and liabilities denomirated in currencies ather than the functiomal currency of the respective entities and foreign currency forecasted
revenue and cash flows. A significant portion of the Group revenue is in Indian Rupeas, Chinese Yuan {CNY), Euro (EUR), Singapore Dallar (SGO), Malaysian Ringgit {MYR) and Japanese Yein
[JP¥). The fluctuation in exchange rates in raspect to India rupse may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and equity.

The rate sensitivity is caleulated by aggragation of the net foreign exchange exposure and a simultanecus parallal foreign exchange rates shift of major currencies by 5% against the
raspective functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries, The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change.

Appreciation [ depraciation of 5% in respective foreign currencies with respect 1o functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries would result in decrease [ increase in the Group's
loss before tax by approximately INR 2,327.25 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 and INR 784.60 millian far the year ended 31 March 2019

Impact on statement of profit and loss

Change in Curre
b Forthe yearended 31 Far the year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019

Chinese Yuan {CNY) +556 {1,912.45) [692.75)

5% 191245 692,75
Euro [EUR) +5% {253.28) (6.39)

5% 25328 6,39
Singapore Dollar (SGD) & +5% £2.97 (20.54)

55 (63.97) 2054
Japanese Yein [IPY] +5% {74203} (34.17)

-5% 74203 3417
Malaysian Ringgit {MYR) +53% {18.96) (30.74)

-5 18.96 3074

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custorner contract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, tha Graup period ically
assesses the financial reliability of its counterparty (primarily consist of Hatel awners), taking inta account the financizl condition, current aconamic tran ds, analysis of historical bad debt and
ageing of account receivable. Individual risk limit sat accordingly. Mo single customer/counterparty accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as at 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2012 ar revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019. There is no sigmificant concentration of credit risk.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Group's corporate treasury department is responsible
for liquidity and funding as wall as settlament managemeant, In addition, processes and palicies related to such risk are overseen by Senior management. Managamant manitors Sroup net
liquidity position thraugh rolling foracasts on the basis of expected cash flows. As at 31 March 2020, cash and cash equivalents are held with major bank and financial institutions.

Tha table balow provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of significant finaneial liabilities at the reporting date

Otol year More than 1 year Tatal

As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings 1,743.16 3189111 3363427
Trade payables 24,728.88 . 24,728 88
Lease liabilities 5,397.54 6,213.51 1281105
Other financial labilies 2,387.0% 507.51 2,884 60

35,256.67 38,612.13 73,868.80
As at 31 March 2019
Borrowings 733.83 168.07 94930
Trade payables 6,262.11 - 6,262.11
Other financial liabilities 2,442.73 58.31 2,501.04

9,488.67 224,38 9,713.05
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Motes to c lidated financial for the year ended on 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise]

&4, Capital managemant

The key abjective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that It maintains 2 stable capital structure with the focus an total equity to uphold investors, creditor and customer
cenfidence and ta ensure future davelopment of its business, The Group's focus is to keap strong total equity base to ensure independerice, security, 35 well as a high financial flexibility for
paotential future borrawings, if required without impacting the risk profile of the Group,

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of thanges in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
strisctura, the Group may return capital to sharehelders er issue new shares, The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The
Group's palicy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimum level to ensure that the debt related covenant are complied with. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing lozns and
berrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued sperations, Thara are no financial covenants attached to interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements.

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Taotal financial liabilitiss 68,193,31 3,713.05
Less: cash and cash equivalents {34,695.67) 145428.71)
Mat debt 33,497.64 (35,716.66)
Total Equity 64,897.46 63,554.358
Gearing ratio (%) 34.04% -128.30%

MNechanges ware made in the abjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

{This space has been intentionally left biank}
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45, Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make udgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenires, axpenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosuras, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumphions and estimates could result in autcomes that require a material adpstment
ta the carrying amount of assets ar habilities affected in future periods

Critical ing estii and
The key assumptions cancerning the future and other key sources of estimation unce rtainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment ta the carryping amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below

Impairment of non-financial asset

Impatrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recaverable amount, which s the higher of its falr value less costs of dispasal and its value in use. The fair
value less costs of disposal caloulation is based on available data from binding salos transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental casts for
disposing of the asset, The value in use calculation 15 hased on a discounted cash fow model which are based on the budget for five years. The recoverable amaunt 1s s=nsitive to the discount rate
used for the discounted cash flow madel as well 83 the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapalation purposes.

b) Defined benefit liabilities (gratuity benefits)
The cost and present value af the defined benefit gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making variows assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These inchide the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and martality rates, Oue 1o the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term

nature, a defined benefit obbgation i highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviswed at each reporting date,

The parametsr most subect to change ts the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government
bonds in currencies consstent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit cbligation. For plans operated outside (ndia, the management considers the interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currences of the post-emplayment benafit abligation with at least an ‘AA’ rating or above, as set by an internatianally acknowledged rating
agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expacted term of the defined benafit cbligation. The underying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those
having excessive credit spreads are axcluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, an the basis that they do not represent tugh quality corporate bonds.

The martality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries, Thase mart ality tables tend to change only at interval in respanse ta demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratusty increases are based on expactad future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Far further details about employee bensfit abligations, refer note 33

¢} Sharebased payments

The Group nitially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a binomial model to determime the fair value af the fiability incdrred. Estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuaton madel, which s dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of
the mast appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them, The assumptions and models

used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are distiosed in Note 40,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheot cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their far vahue is measured using
valuation techigues inchuding the discounted cash flow madel, The mputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values,

e} Deferred tax and MAT credit entitiement

Lt

In assessing the realisability of deferred tax assets and MAT cradit entitlernent the management of the Group estmates whether the Group will #arn sufficient taxable profit i future periods, Tha
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temparary differences become deductible. The amount af the
deferred tax assets and MAT credit entitlement considered realizable could he reduced in the near term, if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward perind are reduced

f} Determining the lease term with renewal and termination eption

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable of the |zase, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it 15 reasenably cartain to ba sxercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the loase if it 15 reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Group has several lease contracts that inchide extension and termination aptions. The Graup
appies Judpement in eval g whether it s bly certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or termnate the lease. That s, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease tan i there 15 a sgnificant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects 1ts ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate {e_g., construction of significant leasshald improvements or significant customisation
tothe leased asset).

(This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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48, Operating segments

A Basis for segmentation

The Company’s operating segments are organiced and managed separately through the respective busimess managers, accarding to the nature of products and services provided with each segment representing
# strategic business unit. These business units are rewewed by the Chief Executie Officer [CED) of the Group (Chisf Operating Decision Maker - 'CODM'). The amounts reperted ta CODM are based an the
accounting principles used i the preparatian of financial statements as per Ind AS. Segment’s performance 15 evaluated based an segment revenue and segment result viz. prafit or loss from operating aetanies
before exceptional items and tax. Accordingly, finance costs fincome, nen-operating incame | expenses and exceptianal items are not aliocated te ndnadual segment. Inter-segment pricing and terms are
reviewed and changed by the managament 1o reflect changes 10 market conditions and changes ta such terms are reflected in the peried in which the changes occur. Inter-segment revenues are eliminated upon
consalidation of segments fram respective operating segment,

segment assets [ habilines compnse assets / abilities directly managed by each segment. Segment asssts and labdites primarily includes operating assets and hatifites. Sagment capital expenditure comprises
af add tiens to PPE, CWIP, itangible assets and capital advances

The following summary descnbes the oparations in 2ach af the Group's reponable segrents:

Repartable segments Operations
1 Hotel bookngs Hetel Business (Other then sell Operated)
2 Wacation Homes Wacation Homes
Self operated business, Co-warking lease, Packages. Life and Hormes, Weddingz and
3. Others o
1gs. meentives, conf: & exhib

B. Geographical information
The geagraphical information analyses the Group's revenues and non-current assets by the Group's Country of Domicie (1e. India and China) and other countries. The Group have three geographical segments
and the disclosure related to geographical segments has been made it the financal statements

€. Major custamer
Revenue from any customer of the Group's Hotel beokings and ather segments does not exceed 10% of the tatal revenus reported and hence, the Managemant believes there are na major custamers to be
disclosad,

(This spece has feen itentianally left blank)
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Orevel Stays Private Limited
CIN; US3030G)2002PTCI0705E
Comsolidated statement of profit and loss far the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amaunt in Indian Rugees Milliens, unless stated otherwise)

A7, Ratutory Group Information

Net Bssets, ie. total assets minus total Shive iri kiss Share in other Shara in tatal
Hiabdlities campreheniive income cormprahensiva loss
okt O Str AeHky i S e As Tt Astiof A5 % of comsolidated i
consolidated et Amaount contolidated Amount ather Amount ’ ; al Armeunt
assets loss eomprehensive income| o L]
Parent
Oravel Stays Private Limited
34 harch 2020 56.82% 36.645.67 1675 14,810.47) 13.79% 768 16 3.16%] [3.052.31]
31 Mareh 2019 40 70 35.521.59 19,758 14,606.67] 0.58% 19.27) 18.51%) [4.61593]
Subiidiaries
Indian
1 O¥0 Hotels and Homes Private Limited
31 March 2000 A2 61% 18,134.37] 23.62% 131,018 16) 0.13% i4.32) 24,227 {31,022 48]
i1 March 2019 261 227510 5530 (2,290.7¢8) -0.03% 050 5.18%) 11.290.26)
2 Oravel Employes Welfare Trust
31 March 2020 Q01 Gl 0.00% (6 12 005 0.00% §010)
31 March 2019 .04 A6 44 0,00% {0y 0.00% 0,003 (700
3 Y0 Apartment Investments LLP
11 Mareh 2020 -0.58% 1374.77) 156% 12,053,986 000 160 [2.053.96
A1 March 2019 Q0e% 5519 060 1139:51) o0k 0.56% (139.31]
4 OY0 OTH Investments | LLP
31 March 2000 [ RTiES 61.23 021 1274.34) 00 0.21% 1374.34}
31 March 2019 0.6 GE 45 038 188.44] 0.0, 0.35% [88.44))
5 O¥0 Midmarkat Investments LLP
21 March 2020 0.12% 7645 0.20% 1262.23) 0.00% 0. 20%| 1262 .23)
31 March 2018 0.13% 19835 0.02% {3.88) 0.00% 0.00%] 13 8]
& 0¥ 0 Financial and Technology Services Private Limited
31 March 2020 0035 2141 0.00%) 061 0.00% 0.00% 061
31 March 2019 0.02% 057 0.00%| 0.57 0.00% 0.00% nsy
7 Y0 Kitchen India Private Limited
31 March 2000 -0.03% (1693} 022% 28330 00% 0.21% 283,50
31 March 2019 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00% >
B OY0 Workspaces india Private Limited
31 March 2000 1A% (254.57} 069% (911.29] 0.00% 0.71% [951.29})
31 March 2012 000 . 00 - 0007 . D00 2
9 OYG Designotel Investments LLP
31 March 2020 fi i Q.00 0.00%, 0.00%]
31 March 20019 oA OO 4 0003 0.00%]
Foreign
1 O¥0 Rooms Hospitality SON
31 March 2010 0.59% 383.65 160% 12.106.30} 0.34% a1 164% 11,005 3a)
31 Mareh 2019 0.18% 15280 262%. (G10.45} 0.23%. A66 a4 {606 79)
2 {Oravel Stays Singapore Pre Limited
31 March 2000 16 647 10,720 50 0385 (#7134} -23.26% {750 78) 0953 [1.222.15)
31 March 2019 0.8 6E0.1 161% [374,15) 4. G B 1.2%% 1311.29)
3 O¥0 Technalogy and Hespitality £ LLC
31 March 2020 LR 13489 0304 1349.59) D422 1347 0.30% (28612}
31 March 2019 0.07% G4 81 O4a% |101.72) -0.073 106 0.a0% (100,65}
4 PT. O¥0 Rooms {Indonesia)
3k March 2000 73 4B5.08 2674 13,503.47) -5, 77% LIBE. 16| 2.88% 13.689.63|
31 March 2019 0L23% 199.86 2894 |696.90) 1.02%] (16 31| 2.86% [713.21]
5 0¥ 0 Vacation Homas Rental LG
31 March 2020 01 15.10) 037 13s2.07) <0.04% [1.32] 0.28% 1353.39]
3] March 2019 D00 436 0% 126.13) -0.01%,) alo 0. 310%, 126 02|
13 OY0 Oravel Technalogy Ca.
31 March 2010 f.06% g0 057% 750,81} -0.16%, {5.30] 0.59%] {756:11)
31 March 2019 a.02% FLEL] 026% 161,27} -0.03% 0.50 0.24%] 160-77)
b O¥ 0 Tachnolagy and Haspitality [UK] Limited
31 March o2 0.30% 19220 317% 14,168,503 0195 00 3255 {4,162 50)
31 March 2019 0.243 210,16 159% (370,141 .45 (7.22) L51 1377.15)




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIR: UB3090G12012PTCIOTO3E
Consolidated statement of profit and kss for the year ended 31 March 2020

[Amount it Indian Rupees WMillions, u nless stated otherwise)

Mot Assabs, i.0., total assets minus total Shara in othar Share in tetal
i : Share in loss E
liabilitios eamprebensive income comprehensive loss
Name of the antity intha group As ol s waf Ais ¥ of conzolidated Rt
cansalidated net Amount consalidated Amaunt other Amaunt Bty e Amouat
Assgts loss comprehensive income : i

3 OF O Haspitality [UK] Limited

31 March 2020 2148 113,858.78) s8N |99z 72 -2.20% (102.16) Q7% 1095.85)

31 March 2019 006 5201 0,12% {28.58) LT (28.33) 0.23% (56.90)
a OY0 Rooms and Hospitality [UK] Limited

31 March 2020 03 {18 23) -005% 59.80 2.73%, BB.0G 0 12% 14726

31 March 201% -0LBEY: 754,83}/ D0 0.50 N0 {000y kv ip] 050
10 OY0 Tachnokegy & Hospitality {China| Pte Limited

31 arch 2020 0.26% 168,64 0,06% |72.68) 3643 1311 12} 30% |383.80

31 0darch 2019 2% 0B™ 2185507 AT1H 164.78 9728% 1560 79} 5 60%, [1,396.08)
1 ovor lity & Inf i vl |

Company Limited

11 March 2020 1003 643300 4374 (5.738.24) 6.21% 240 33 4.32% 15.537.85)

31 March 2038 A04% 361390 44,013 110,266.96| 641 102 85 4077% (10,164 08|
1 OY¥0 Brasil Servicos de Turismo LTDA

31 March 2020 0,245 126.61 2.51%, 3,269.94) 135%% {43.53) 2.80% (3,333.38)

31 Adarch 2019 -0.02% {14 657) 0.09%, 2113 0oL% 014 0.08%, 21.04)
13 Oravel Hotels Mexico § de RL. de G,

A1 March 2020 065% 4009 0.71%, {927 21) [LEEES 1075 0.72% 1916 48]

31 March 2019 oo 2731 0.08% 1768 -001% 013 0.07% 117.53)
14 OYO Technalogy and Hospitality [ Thailand] Limitad

31 March 2020 031 202.60 061 [8o0111) 0.33% 018 oe2% (7e0.93)

31 March 2010 36 10,50 0. 16% 136.98| 1273 o16% 139.72}
15 OY¥O Techneloey & Hospitality Philippines Inc, -

31 March 2020 0233 15036 0,40% {529.57) 027 {884} 0.42% 1538.41)

41 Mareh 2018 0.0 FEE L] 034% 178.83) 0.03% 0.48 a.31%) (78.35)
16 OYO Techralogy & Hospitality Sapan KK

31 March 2070 113% 7316l B.61% [B.67% 50} 13.29% 2834 Gaan 18,250 96)

31 March 2019 5.30% 4,628.8] 1633 [FEEE B.74% 156 28) 3.09% 1770 66)
17 O¥D Hotels lapan GK

31 March 2020 1023% 659635 4.87% 16,128 31] 44.85% 1451 13 365% |4.677.08|

31 Mareh 2019 15 B5% 13183133 .41 (25.71] R bR 170 038 134.01)
18 Y0 Technology & Haspitality 5L Spain

31 March 2020 0.04% 2670 0.50%, {681.38) 0.37% §208 0.51% {e49.30)

31 March 2009 A0H 1350 052% 1120.18) 0.00K: {0.06] 048 1120.23)
19 Oravel Technolegy aad Hospitality Lanka [Pyt] Limitad

A1 Margh 20240 Q206 37 83 005 [120.53); 0.03% 051 0.00% (120402

38 March 2019 000# . Goms . 0.02% 10.28) 0.00% 1029y
0 O0%0 Technalogy & Hospitality | Vietnam] LLC

31 March 2020 0133 amn 0.33% 1554.53] i5% 1120 0.42% 54343

31 Mbarch 2019 DDA, 054 -0.07% 16.16 -0.06% 081 0 7%, 1707
21 O¥0 Hotel Management |Shanghail Company Limited

11 Madeh 2020 -1.06% 11,327 81) 2306% 128,962.13) 11915 707 35 22,06 {28,254.78|

31 March 2019 L6% 118597 1508 13.507.02) 0914 (14,55 13125 3.521.57)
22 OY¥0 {Shanghail Investment Company Limited

31 March 2020 -0.02% {13.20} C.OEY 177.15) -1.95% 6282 1% {14007)

31 March 2018 -0.40% 1347.82] o (1.54) 0055 {083 0L01%) 12.37)




Oravel Stays Private Limited
€Itk UB30906GI2012PTCIOT08E
Comolidated statement of profit and loss fior the year ended 11 March 2020

{Amount in Indéan Aupees Millians, unless stated atherwise)

Tat Assets, i.e,, tolal B336ts minus tatal 2 Share im other Share in tatal
L Share in loss i
tomprahansive incoma comprehendive loss |
Hama of the entity inthe group As % of As ol As % of cansolidated A% st totad
consalldated mat Amount consalidated Ameunt ather Amount - Amount
comprahansive loss
assets lass camprehensive income
1 OYO Hatels Netherlands B.Y
31 March 2030 -G08 {51 07} 0 56 173336} 0.25%| 819 057% (725.17)
31 March 2019 0,045 1435 0003 (.00 0015 10.15) 0.00% {0.15)
24 0¥ Hetals Ine
31 Merch 2020 0.25% 162,19 B 55% 111,22526) B 90% 287 17 8543 {10,532.00)
31 March 2018 0,125 10839 L.53% 1353 65| LEELS 5,83 1.a0% {346.83)
25 Irmand lnc,
31 March 2020 0145 {90 61] 0.01%; 112.23) 018 (5991 a01% 118.23)
31 tzrch 2019 -025% (214 68] 0002 . 00 54 .66 -00I% RES
26 Gunrrilla Infra Salutions Private Limited
31 March 2020 001% 1364 0,345 f44291) 0.00% | . 0.35% |4az2.91)
31March 2019 -013% [115.82) 0.0 . D00 = .o 2
27 Supreme Sai Construction and Developers LLP
31 March 2020 RS 2473 0.08% (27.08| 0004 - 002% [27.08)
31March 2018 0,105 87 26 0.00% - Qo0 - 0o .
-] Baging Oei Ke You Jia Technology Company Limited
31 Mareh 2020 (304.25) 162, (3,440.17| 1A 45 18 2.65% (3,395.01)
31 March 2019 {55 66) 0003, . 0,00 - 0.00% -
2 ORAVEL MEXICD SERVICES 5 DE RL DE OV
31 March 2020 orry (139.84) 0.83%, [1.174.66) -0.19% [6.08) 0.92% [2,18072)
31 March 2019 o0 0,005 - 0005 - 0.00% -
0 YO Hate s Frante SARL
31 March 2020 T {167} .00 (1.88) 00k a0z 0.00% (1.86)
1 March 2018 ooz - .00 - 000k 0.0 -
i1 OY0 Hotels Gerrmany GMEH
31 March 2020 0013 287 0.11% {143.51] it n2e 0112 1142.22)
31 March 2019 000 - 000 : a .00 g 0.00%
3z OYD Hotels Canada Inc
31 Warch 2020 -001% 8.24) 0.10% (131.39) -0.01% [0.21) 0.10% 113230y
31 March 2013 Qoo “ 0,004 = 0.00% - 0.00%, .
33 OYO Lile Real Estate LLC
31 March 2020 0o 5523 0.01% {15.56) 0.00% 0.02 0.01%] 115.58)
#1March 2019 0.00% . 000% B 0.00% - 0.00%
34 PT. OY0 Hotels Indenesia
31 March 2020 0.15% 410 0.00% 132.09) -0.03% 108l 0:02% 3090
31 March 2019 Q.00 . 0.00% . 000 3 0.00% -
35 Saudi Hospitabity Systems Consulting & Research Lo,
31 Margh 2020 a9 121.44 0,004 265 0. B, 1583 -0 D2%) 28438
3 Mareh 2019 0003 0.00% - 0,000, - 0.00%)
36 OY0 Corparate Serites Company Limited
31 March 2020 D 6.21 0.000 [l &i ] 4435 14294 -0 115 M217
31 March2m9 Qo0 . 0.00% ae0n D.00%| .
37 layou
11 March 2020 001% (7.49] 0o .78} o.00% 0.0 0.01%) (888
31 Mareh 2019 000 - anms - 0a - 0o -
EL S OY0 Hatels Chile Spa
31 March 2020 Qoo . 0.oms . 00 4 000,
31 March 201% Q00% # o0 - 0,00 . 0.002
39 O¥D Latam Holdings UK Limited
31 March 20200 a.ons {0:15) 0.00%: 37 -1L06% 134.36) 003 134.73|
31 March 2013 QDo = OO0 . 0.00% - 0.00% .
4o O¥0 Hetels Cayman
31 March 2020 0.00% f{o.on) 0.0 11.45) 0,0 E 0,005 1135
31 March 2019 00 - 0.00% . 0.00% 5 0.00% -
a1 OVO Vacation Homes LK
31 March 2020 a0 0,00 a0l 111.48) Lo ooz 00 112.46)
31 March 2019 a0 - a0 - 000 . 000 .
42 OYd Vacation Homes LS
31 tarch 2000 0.00% |2.07) 0.1 1137.75) 0.03% 085 A% [136.30)
i1 March 2015 o.00% - 000% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
a3 Y0 Prop Co LIC
11 March 2020 000k - 001% |7.80) Q.00 005 0.01% {7 84
31 March 2015 o00% - OO0 - 0.00% . 0.00H
4 OY0 Hotels Switzerland Gmbh
1 March 2000 -0.05% (3128 0.02% 131.17) D.93% 29.95) 0.05% 15113
i1 March 2019 O = ful o - aon% 0.0
45 V0 Hotels Singapers Pta Limked
A1 March 2000 1205 17291 LE:EET {1,106.48} 17.91% 57819 LR E 1528.30)
31 March 2019 oo . 0004 . 0.00% . 0.00% =
48 Y0 Rooms & Technology LLC USA
31 March 2020 @A |6.36) ann [22.06} <020 (63| 0024 (26.40)
31 March 2019 ooo% . 0.00% - 0.00%: . 000, <




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIf: L63090512012PTC107088
Consolidated statement of profit and lass for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amount in Indian Rupges Millians, unless stated otherwise]

Mot fasets, ioe., total assets mings total el s Ehare in othar Share in tatal
lizbdlities L incoma comprahensive lass
Name af the entity inthe group a8 % of Astol A5 % of conselidated PR —
consolidated net Amaunt eonsolidated Amount athar Amount. M: ‘e_“ o Armaurit
Fssets loss. tomprehensive income i
a7 OY0 Haspita lity INC LSA
31 Mareh 2020 oo .00 o01% 11938| «0.37% (1581} ooz 123.29)
31 March 2018 003 - .00 - aleed - 20 B -
a8 QYD Franchising LLC
31 March 2020 0.45% 12271 0.00% 10.38) 0.37% 1o -001% 1164
31 March 2015 0003 - 000 g Q.00 s Cee -
43 QYO Hotels talia S.R.L
31 March 2020 anmE (0.0} 003% {38.45) 0.00% 008 o035 (3837
31 March 2013 a00% . 0.00% x 0.00% * 0.00% L
50 00 Technobegy and Hospitality LLC
31 March 2020 aoas 2590 Q01 (10.35] o.0a 131 a01% o1
11 March 2019 000 - 0.00% . 000 - 0.00% -
51 OO0 Hospltality Netherlamds BW
31 March 2020 3l 20,122 88 1704 12,22545) 162% -20.03 1.76% 12.249.48)
31 Mareh 2019 O - O, * Q.00 * 000k .
52 OY0 Vacation Homes Holding BY -
31 March 2020 0,19 122,91 0.17%H {221.02)) Q.00 0ATH 122102}
11 #arch 3019 000 - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%| -
53 Balvilla AG B
41 March 2020 -d45% -1,387 10 -0.71%, 61437 a.00% 0.73% 91437
31 March 2019 a0 0.00% - 0.00% 0006
54 AanZes VillaXL BV .
32 March 2020 0.01% 484 0.00% 10.19] 0.00% 0.00% 101%
3% March 2019 Q0o = Q.00 . 0u0s 0.00% -
55 Basbvilla Nederland By 5
31 March 2020 DM 26.90 0.11% {14837 0.00% iz [14E37)
31 March 2019 .00 . 0.00% - 0.00% 0.003% #
56 Belyilla Alguiler de Vacaclones Espana 5.1 -
11 March 2010 0.11% 68.37 011% (143 454 o.00% 0.11% {143 45§
11 March 2009 Q.0 « 0.00% + .00 0.00% .
57 Belyvilla France SARL .
31 March 2020 Q13% 8la% 0.16% (213.03] 0.00% 0.17%: 1213.03}
11 March 2019 oo 5 00 T 0Lo0% . 0.00%, .
58 EBalvilla Balpque BY -
31 March 2020 .00 0.39 ook o T D00 1,007 10 70
33 March 2019 0.00% - c.oms - 0.00% 0:00% .
58 Belvilla Services BY -
31 March 2020 O 5R%) 37681 0.93% 11.226.97) 0.00% 0.863 {1,226.97]
31 March 2018 .00 3 000 . 0,008 00 -
a0 Belvilla ttalia Sel .
31 tarch 2020 0.08% 2316 003% 181.70) 0.00% 003% 141.70)
1 March 2013 Qoo . 0.00%, . 0.00% Q0% =
61 Belvilla Crontia Limited -
31 March 2020 A.005 181 007%) {744}, 0.00% .01 7 44
11 March 2019 a.00% - 0.00%| . 0.00% 0.00%: .
B2 Belvilla Deutschland GrmbH .
31 March 2020 B8 ES 89.77 014% 1179.92) 0.00% 0.14% 1179.9z]
31 March 2019 oLpgi 2 Q00 - 0.00% 000 >
63 Belvilla Ferienwahnungen GmbH %
31 March 2000 0047 2497 007H 188.19) 0.00% 007 138.19)
31 March 2019 0003 % 000 - 0.00% 0.00% .
54 Traum-Ferenwohnungen GmbH 5
31 March 2020 1435 27956 <0303 392.92 0.00% -0 31% 39292
31 March 2013 a0 * D0 - 0.00% C [l e .
65 T-Bee GmbM =
31 March 2010 .08% 52.52 000 10,35} 2.00%| 0.00%% (03%)
31 March 2019 Q.00 . 00| . 0.00% 0.00% £
&6 Oravel Vacation Homes Denmark ApS =
31 March 2020 maL 10 0.0 .23 00% 000 223
31 March 2013 o003 - 000 - D.00% 0,00% *
&7 Dancenter A5 =
31 March 2000 24 154,79 LELE 02 .07 0.00% A1 70 a0z.07
a1 March 2019 QLo & [elai ] - 0.00% 0.0
4] Vasthkust-bakning. i
31 March 2070 o03% 1870 006% 183.25) 0.00%, 0.07% 183.25)
3 March 3019 00 000, - 0.00% coo -
] DanCenter AS Niederdassung _
31 March 2010 0100 5322 03 1517 84} 0.00% 040 517 84)
31 Mareh 2019 0.0 - o + 0.00%| GO0 -
0 Dantenter GmbH .
31 March 2020 0.01% T Bl 8120 0.00%, -0 06% h i}
31 March 2019 a.00% = 0005 - 0.00%) 0.00% =
7 Dancenter EDB- Service ApS ¥
31 March 20200 0.05% 3283 0.12% (163.21) [Eer e 0.13% (163.22|
31 March 2019 0.00% . Q0 . 0.00% 0.00% 5
iz Rasidance Do Manbeisan Afs -
31 March 020 003 28 0.00% 2681 007 000k (2 68}
21 March 2019 0.00% - Q00% = 9.00% 0400 .




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIM: UE30S0G 120 IPTC 107088

Comalidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

[Amount in Indian Rupaes Millions, unless stated otherwiss)

Mot Assets, e, total mssets minus total et Share in other Share in total
liabilith comprehe nsive income k k
Name of the entityin the group As % ol As 3 of As % of consolidated Assof '
consolidated net Amount conselidated Amaunt athar Amaunt ; u_m I Amount
asiets loss comprehonsine income i <
73 Admiral Strand Feriehuse ApS .
31 Merch 2020 0247 -152.67 -0.06% 8341 0,050, 007 B3.41
31 Mareh 20139 000 E 0.00% . 0.00%] T
Jeint Ventures
Indian
1 ¥P d and Privata
Limitad
31 March 2020 553% 3,569.08 0 11% 1209 000k @ 11%; 209
31 March 2019 193% 342699 (2% 500 oD 002 500
2 Muountainia Devebo pers and Hospitality Private Limited
31 Miarch 2020 24y 157415 0,134 17287 (el 1% D 13%) 17287
31 March 2019 000 x 0.00% . 0.00% 0.00%
Fareign
1 O¥D Mountainia UK Limited:
11 March 2020 2.26% 1A5E 71 1.08% (1.374.67] @00 1.07% 11,37467
11 tdarch 2014 110 £ 5.00 o0k - Qo0 0,008
2 VO My Prefemed UK Limited
31 March 2020 5.03% 3,758.59 -0.12% 148,19 0% -0.12% BEL BT
38 March 2015 D00 - Q.oms ¥ 0.00% 0.007% L
3 Marina Wendtorf Invest I GmbH
3% March 2020 O.08%, 4950 [ele 0.0 0.00%
31 March 2019 Q.00 = 0.0 = oo 0.00%
4 OYO Mountainia USA inc
31 March 20240 Q.00% 31 0.00%) 000w . 000
il March 2019 D.00% . 0.00% X B 0.00%,
Tatal 31 March 2020 100.00% | 64,496.90 100.00% {131.297.91}) 100.00% 32834 100.00% 1128,069.57)
31 March 2019 100.00% | 87.286.58 100,003 123,327.54) 100.00% [1.604.39) 100.00% 124,832.33)




Oravel Stays Private Limited
CIN: U63090612012PTC107088

Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Amountin Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

48.1. Group Information

MNarme of Subsidiaries

Country of incarporation

% of holding and voting power either directly
ar indirectly through subsidiary

As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
OY0 Hotels and Homes Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
OYO Apartment Investments LLP* India 100.00% 100.00%
OYD OTH [mvestments | LLP* India 100.00% 100.00%
OYQ Midmarket Investments LLP* India 100.00% 100.00%
0OYO Financial and Technology Services Private Limited |Indiz 100.00%, 100.00%
Oravel Employes Welfare Trust India 100.00% 100.00%
0¥ 0 Reoms Hospitality SDN BHD Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%:
Oravel Stays Singapore Pta Limited Singapors 100.00% 100.00%
OO Technelogy and Hospitality FZ LLC Dubai 100.00% 10:0.00%
PT. OYO Rooms {Indonesla) Indanesia 100.00% 100.00%;
OYD Oravel Technology Co. Saudi Arabia 100.00% 100.005
Y0 Mountainia UK Limited United Kingdom 1.00% 100,003
OY0 Mypreferred Hospitality UK Limited United Kingdom 0.00% 100.00%
Oyo Technology and Hospitality (UK] Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
OYO Hospitality [UK) Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%:
OYO Rooms and Hospitality [UK]) Limitad United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%%
0YD Technology and Hospitality {Thailand) Limited Thailand 100.00% 100.00%
QY0 Technology & Hospitality Philippines Inc. Fhilippines 100.00% 100.00%
QY0 Technology & Hospitality 5L Spain Spain 100.00% 100.00%
Oravel Technology and Hospitality Lanka (Put] Limited Srilanka 100.00% 100.00%
CYO Technology & Hospitality (Vietnam) LLE Vietnam 100.00% 100.00%
OYO Hatels Netherlands B.V Netherland 100.00% 100.00%
QYO Hotels Inc USA (Previously known as OYO Hotals LLC) United Stats of America 100.00%) 100.00%
Innov8 Inc. United State of America 100.00% 100,005
Guerrilla Infra Solutions Private Limited India 100,00% 100.00%
Supreme 5al Construction and Developars LLP™ |india 100.00% 100.00%
Oraval Hatels Mexica 5. de R.L. de CV, Mexice 100.00% 100,003
OYO Technology & Hespitality Japan KK Japan 100.00% 66, 10%
OYO Hotels Japan GK lapan 50.20% 50.20%
OYO Vacation Homes Rental LLC Dubsai 49,00% 42.00%4!
0 Techno!g_g[& Hospitality (China) Pte Limited Singapore 45 ,46% 45.46%
OYO Hospitality & Information Technology [Shenzhen) Compary Limited China 45 46% 15.46%
QY0 Hotel Management [Shanghai] Company Lirmited China 45, 46% 45.46%
QYQ lSh_a;_rlbg'[lar} Investment Company Limited China 45 46% 45.46%
Beljing Bei Ke You Jia Technology Company Limited China 45 46% 45 .46%
OYO Kitchen India Private Limited India 100.00%. 0.0024
OYD Waorkspaces India Private Limited India 100.00% 0,00%
QYO Designotel Investments LLP* |india 100.00% 0.00%
OY0 Vacation Homes Holding B.V {Consol 41 Netherland 100.00% 0.00%
QYO Hospitality Netherlands BV Netherland 100.00% 0.00%
0OYO Rooms & Hospitality B.V Netherland 100.00% 0.00%
O¥0 Hotals Switzerdand Gmbh Swizerland 100.00%4% 0.00%
Dalian Gianyu Wanyu Trading Company China 45 46% 45.46%
Shanxi Disen Hotel Management Co., Ltd, China 45 .46% 45,465
Wuhan Baike Youjia Hotal b ent Ca., Ltd, China 45 .48% 45 465
Beijing liayoulewan Technology Co., Ltd. China 435.468% 0.00%
OYO Corparate Services Co. Ltd China 45.46% 0.00%
O¥0 Vacation Homes LLE United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
O¥0 Brasil Hospitalidade E Tecnologia Eireli Brazil 100.00% 100.00%
OYO Hotels Singapore Pte Ltd. Singapare 100.00% 0.008%%
YD Vacagj_gn Homes Cayman Cayman 100.00% 0.00%
OYD Vacation Homes UK Limited United Kingdom 100,00% 0.00%
0YD Hotels Cayman Cayman 100.00% 0.00%
OY0 Latam Heldings UK Lid United Kingdom 100.00% 0.00%/
OY¥0 Town House Netherlands B.V. Netherland 100.00% 0.005%
O¥0 Hotels and Homes Netharlands B, Netherland 100.00% 0.00%
O¥0D Hotels Germany GMBH Germany 100.00% 0.00%
0¥0 Hotels France SARL France 100.00% 0.00%
PT. OYO Hatels Indonesia |Indonasia 65.67% 0.00%
OY0 Rooms & Technolegy LLE USA United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
OYO Technology LLC United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
DYO Franchising LLC United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
OY0 Propeo LLE. United State of America 100.00% 0.00%%
OYO Operated LLC United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
OYO Hotels italiaSR.L. Italy 100.00% 0, 00%
Y0 Rocoms & Technology [Malaysia) SDN. BHD. EMastia 100.00% 0.00%




Oravel Stays Private Limited

CIN: U63090612012PTCIO7088

Consolidated statemant of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated otherwise)

Saudi Hospitality Systems Consulting & Research Co. Saudi Arabia 100.00% 0.0
OY D Life Real Estate LLC Dubai 10:0.00% 0.0
Oravel Maxico Services 5 De Rl Da Cv Mexico 97.93% 0.00%
O¥0 Hotels Canada Inc Canada 100.00% 0.00%
OY0 Technology and Hospitality LLC{Oman) Oman 70.00% 0.00%
0YD Hospitality Inc LISA United State of America 100.00% 0.00%
Oravel Hotels (Singapore) Pte Ltd, Singapore 100,00% 0.00%
0Y¥0 Hotels (Bangladesh| Limited Bangladesh 100.00% 0.00%
OYD Hotels Argentina S.R.1, Argentina 29,00% 0.00%
OY 0 Hotels Chile SPA Chile 100.00% 0.00%%
Oravel Hotels Colombia 5.A.5, Calornbia 100.00% 0.00%
OY0 Haotels Peru 582 Fery 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilia Nederland BV (formerly Topic Travel BV| (Netherlands| Metherland 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilia Services BY (Farmerly @Leisure BR BY] (Naetherlands) Metherland 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla Ferienwohnungen GmbH (Austria) {*) Austria 100.00% 0.00%
AanZee VillaXL BY (Netherlands) Metherland 100.00% 0.00%%
Belvilla AG [Switzerland) Swizerland 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla Deltsehland (farmerly Tourismuszentrum GmbH M-0)[Garmany) Germany 100.00% 0.00%,
Traurm-Ferienwsohnungen GmbH (Germany) Germany 100.00% 0.00%,
t-bee GmbH {Germany) Germany 100.00% 0.00%
OYD Vacation Homes Denmark ApS5 Denmark 100.00% 0,004
Dancenter A/S (Denmark) Denmark 100.00% 0.00%
Admiral Strand Ferishuse ApS {Denmark] Denmark 100.00%% 0.00%
Dancenter EOB- Service ApS |Denmark) Denmark 100.00%% 0.00%
Residence De Monbrison A/S {Denmark) Denmark 73.16% 0.00%
Dancenter GmbH {Germany) Germany 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla France Sarl (France] France 100.00% 0.00%.
Belvilla Belgique B.V. {Belgium) Belgium 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla UK {in farmation or by transfer internally) United Kingdom 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla alguiler de vacaciones Espafia $.L. (Spain) Spain 100.00% 0.00%
Belvilla Italia 5rl {ltaly) italy 100,00% 0.00%
Belvilla Croatia spoo (Croatia) Croatia 100.00% 0.00%%

“represents 59.999% as ot 31 March 2020 & 31 March 2019

48.2. Information about subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest and joint venture

A. Information about subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (NCI)

Proportion of ownership interests and voting
Name of Subsidiaries Principal Activities rights held by NCI
As at Ag at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
oYo Te:hnalawcspitali:y Japan KK* Engaged in business of managing and 0.00% 33.90%
OY0 Vacation Homes Rental LLC aperating yacation homes. 51.00% 51.00%
OY0 Technology & Hospitality ( China) Limited bugeged) W buriness oF providing 54.54% 54,549
management consultancy service,

OY O Hotels lapan GK 45.80%, 438 80%
QY0 Hospitality & Informatian Technology (Shenzhen} Company Limited 34.54% 54.54%
OY0O Hotel Manag {Shanghai) Company Limited 54,543 54.54%
Beijing Bei Ke You lia Technology Company Limited 54.54% 54.54%
Dalian Qianyu Wanyu Trading Cornpany 54.54% 54.54%
Shanxi Disen Haotel Management Co., Ltd. Engaged In the business of hotel and 54.54% 54.54%
Wuhan Beike Youjia Hotel Management Co., Ltd. property management, hatel supplies, 54.54% 54.54%
Beijing liayoulewan Technology Co., Ltd. software development and decoration 54,54% 0.00%
DY 0 Corporate Services Co. Ltd design 54.54% 0.00%
PT. OY0 Hotels Indonesia 66.67% 0.00%
Oravel Mexico Services 5 De Rl De Cv 97.83% 0.00%
OY0 Technology and Hospitality LLC{Oman) 70.00% 0.00%
OY 0 Hotels Argentina 5.R.L. 59.00% 0,00%
Residence De Monbrison A/S (Denmark) 73.16% 0.00%
OY0 (Shanghai) Investment Company Limited Imvestment campany 54.54% 54543

*become 100% subsidiary of theO YD Hospitality UK Limited w.e.f 31 October 2019,
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Summarized financial information for OYO Technology 8 Hospitality Japan Kitis sot out below:

P Asat Asat
i 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Mon-current assets 7,944.07 174.22
Current assets 2,011.72 4,681.97
Total assets 9,955.79 4,856.19
Equity (3,571.15) 4,607.09
Mon-current lishilities 7,183.97 -
Current liabilities 6,342.97 245.10
Tatal equity and liabilities 9,955.79 4,856.19
Tatal income 1,882.95 23.27
Tatal expensas 10,585.72 £11.03
Income tax expense = 18.81
Loss for the period 18,702.76) (606.56) |
Other comprahensive income 358.97 £
Total comprehensive income for the year 18,343.79) (606.56)
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent {8,343.79) [400.34)
Non-controlling interest - (205.62)

Asat As at
SRS €A Tiaw 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities 2,527.92 (854.48)
Cash flows from investing activities 1,064.65 147.80)
Cash flows from financing activities 135.02 5,365.91
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [2,866-55]] 4,463.63
Summarized financial information for OYD Hotels Japan GK is set out helaw:

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Mon-current assets 1,014.78 3.95
Current assets 10,043,72 13,318,259
Total assets 11,058.50 13,922.24
Equity 9,124.63 13,812 35
MNon-current liabilities 702.63 =
Current liabilities 1,231.34 109.85
Total equity and liahilities 11,058.50 13,922.24
Tatal income 2,919,596 0.10
Total expenses §,057.83 95.81
Income tax expense - -
Loss for the period (6,137.87) [95.71)
Other comprehensive income 1,451.81 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (4,686.06) (95.71)
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent {2,352.40) {48.04)
Non-contralling intersst (2,333.66) 147.68)

As at As at
Surmmmarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in oparating activities {5,336.84) {0.22}
Cash flows from investing activities (2,803.97) -
Cash flows from financing activitias 1,148.40 13,906.40
Met increase in cash and cash equivalonts {6,992.41) 13,906.18
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Summarised financial information for OY0 Technology & {China) Pte Ltd is set out below:

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Non-current assets 40,253,586 18,323.16
Current assets 11,180.98 22,990.08
Total assets 51,440.85 41,913.24
Equity 42,129.17 41,869.65
MNonecurrent labilities - -
Currant liabilities 5,311.68 43,59
Total equity and liabilities 51,440.85 41,913.24
Total income 40.78 315.15
Total expenses 210.33 150.37
Income tax expense 2 3B.38
Loss far the period {170.05) 126.38
Other comprehensive income {1,130.99) -
Tatal comprehensive income for the year (1,301.04) 126.38
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent {591.45) 57.45
Man-cantralling interest (709.59) 68.93
As at As at
Summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash wsed in operating activities (703.30) |2,682.96]
Cash flows from investing activities [21,275.03) [18.,593.21|
Cash flows from financing activities 398 594 43,193.86
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents [21,579.45) 21,917.69
Summarised financial information for 0YO Hospitality & information Technology [Shenzhen| Co Ltd is sot out below:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mon-current assets 247,64 287.28
Current assets 927.18 5,215.84
Total assets 1,174.82 5,503.13
Equity -420.84 3,206,558
MNon-current liabilities 271.76 -
Currant liahilities 1.567.90 2,296.15
Total equity and wlﬂes 1,174.82 5,503.13
Total income 22,396.17 20,879.04
Total expenses 28,189.77 31,224.98
Income tax expense - =
Loss for the period {5,761.60) (10,345.95)
Other comprehensive income 252.13 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (5,509.48)) (10,345.95)
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent (2,504.58) {4,703.21)
Nen-cantrolling interest (3,004.50] {5,642.74)
As at Asat
|Summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities 12,863.50) {12,122.52)
Cash flows from investing activities {105.15) {322.03)
Cash flows from financing activities 2,069,85 13,435.30
Met increase in cash and cash equi (902.80) 990.76
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Summarised financial infarmation for OY0 Hotel Management (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. is set out below:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNorn-current assets 162.56 31742
Currant assets 3,202.69 2,151,43
Total assets 3,465.25 2478.85
Equity -12,817.66 1,188.47
Mon-current lizhilities 0,20 =
Current liabilities 16,282.61 1,230.38
Total equity and liahilities 1,465.25 2,478.85
Total income 15,786.79 151.78
Total expenses 44,748.92 3,659.28
Income tax expensa - &
Loss for the period |28,962.13) (3,54]?.49!]
Other comprehensive income £95.41 -
Total comprehensive income for the year |28,262.72) (3,507.49)
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent [12,848.08) [1,554.49]
Man-contrelling Interest [15,414.64) (1,313.00)
As at As at
summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities [15,768.84) [2,248.16)
Cash flows from investing activities {1,137.79) {336.75)
Cash fiows from financing activities 14,953.95 4,710.51
[Met increase in cash and cash equivalents {2,012.68) 2,125.60
Summarised financial infarmation for 0YO (Shanghai) Investment Co. Ltd. is set out below:
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mon-current assets 7,305.37 1,108.09
Current assets 25.29 69.31
Total assets 7,330.66 1,177.40
Equity 5,786.91 76017
Nam-current liabilities - .
Current liabilities 1.543.75 417.23
Total equity and liabilities 7,330.66 1,177.40
Total income 0,09 {1.54]
Total expanses 75.84 6.00
Incame tax expense 1.60 :
Loss for the period (77.15) {1.54]
Other comprehensive income {83.37) -
Tatal comprehensive income for the year {140.52) (1.54)
Attributabie to -
|Equity holders of parent {63.52) {0.70)
Mon-controlling interest {77.00) {0.84)}
As at As at
Summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities 1,023.14 414.85
Cash flows from investing activities {6,197.28) {1,108.09}
Cash flows from financing activities 5,105.49 762.54
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents {68.65) 69.31

2
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Summarised financial information for Beijing Bei Ke You lia Technology Co Ltd is set out below:

Particulars At Ayt

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Non-current assets 1.03 16.47
Current assets 8254 144.08
Total assats 83.57 160.54
Equity (2,294.54) (55.66)
Mon-current liabilities = -
Current liabilities 2378.11 216.21
Total equity and liabilities 83.57 160,54
Total incame 1,540.74 {1.54]
Total expenses 4,980.51 0.00
Income tax expense % =
Loss far the period {3,440.17) {1.54)
Other comprehensive income 45.16 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,395.01) {1.54)
Attributable to -
Equity holdzrs of parent {1,543.35) {0.70}
Men-cantralling interast {1,851,66) {0.84}

Asat As at

S ised cash flow® 31 March 2020 31 March 2013
Cash used in operating activities §1,040.13) =
Cash flows from investing activities (204.01) £l
Cash flows fram financing activities 1,201.29 -
Met in¢rease in cash and cash equivalents (42.91) =
Cash flow for year ended 31 March 2019 hos not been presented os acquisition was on 31 March 2019.
Summarised financial information for Beijing Jiayoulewan Technaology Co., Ltd. is set out below:
Particulars gt Pt

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mon-current assets 4] =
Current assets .83
Total assets 2.83 -
Equity (8.69) .
MNon-current liabilities = -
Current liabilities 11,52 -
Total equity and liabilities 2.83 -
Total incoma 18.79
Total expenses 27.57
Income tax expense -
Loss for the period (8.78)
Qther comprahensive income Q.09 -
Total compreh incorme for the year (3.69} 4
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent [2.35) -
Non-cantrolling interast {4.74} -

As at As at

Summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities 012
Cash flows from investing activities = =
Cash flows from financing activities 0.08 -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 0.21 =
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Summarised financial information for OY0 Corporate Services Co. Ltd is set out below:

Particulars Asat st

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNan-current assets - -
Current assets 533826 -
Total assets 5338.26 -
Equity 5,183.28 =
Mon-current liabilities E
Currant liabilitiss 154.88 -
Total equity and liabilities 5338.26 =
Total income 0.23
Total expenses 100 -
Income tax expense .
Loss for the period 0.77)
Other cormprahensive income 142.94 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 142.17 -
Attributable to -
Equity holders of parent £l
Non-cantrolling interest 77.54

As at As at

Summarised cash flow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash used in operating activities {5,184.07] =
Cash flows from investing activities 0.23
Cash flows fram financing activitiss 5,184.05
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 0.21

B. Information about Joint Ventures

Country of incorporation

% of holding and voting power either directly
or indirectly through subsidiary

Name of joint venture
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Mountainia Developers & Hospitality Private Limited India 50.00% N.A
Neeldeep Developers Private Limited India 50.00% N.A
Muititude Infrastructure Private Limited India 50.00%] N.A
My Preferred Transformation And Hospitality Private Limited India 49.80%| 43.80%,
ESPACIOSO Transformation & Hospitality Private Limited India 49.80% N.A
GENIAL Transformation & Hospitality Private Limited India 49, 80%| NLA
EDIFICIC Trarsfarmation & Hospitality Private Limited India 49.80% N.A
FABULOSO Transformation & Hospitality Private Limited India 42.80% N.A
OY O My Preferred Hospitality UK Limited Unitad King_dorr\ 49.99%, N.A
OYQ My Preferred Hazpitality 1l UK Limited Unitad Kingdom 49.99% N.A
OY G My Preferred Hospitality 11l UK Limited Unitzd Kingdom 49.29% N.A|
OY O My Preferred Hospitality US Inc. United State of America 49.99%, N.A
QY0 My Preferred Hospitality Japan GK Japan 49, 59% N.A
OY0 My Preferred Hospitality {Singapore) Pte Limited Singapore 43, 99% N.A
0Y0 Mountainia UK Limited United Kingdom 45.99% N.A
OYQ Mountainia || UK Limited United Kingdorn 49,99%| N.A
OYQ Mountainia USA Inc. United State of America 43,99%) N.A
OYQ Mountainia Japan GK lapan 49.99% N.A
MWDI KK Japan 39.959% MN.A
OYOM-HCI 115 East Tropleana Avenue )W LP United State of America 45.87H N.A
Hooters Hotels & Casino property {"0Y0 Las Vegas") United State of America 49 .95% N.A
Paragon Trapicana, Inc United State of America 45.55%, N.A
Country Inn & Suites Dallas Love Field Medical Center (“OYO Dallas”) United State of America 45.98% N.A
Red Roof nn Orlando West [“0YO Orlando”) United State of America 43 99%] M.A
West 47th Owner LB United State of America 45.07%) N.A
Might Hotel Times Square property {"0OY0 Times Sguare”) United State of America 43,99%| .4
Myrtle Beach Atlantic Palms Oceanfront Hotel ("0YD Myrtle Beach”) United State of America 43.99% N.A
OO Mountainia [Singapore} Pre Limited Singapore 49.99% N.A
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(i) The Group has 439.80% (49.80% as at 31 March 2012) interest in Mygpreferred Transformation and Hospitality Private Limited, acquired on 29 March 2018, which is primarily
engaged in the business of hotel management consultants, managing and operating hotels, guest houses, motels, lodging and boarding houses, serviced apartments, holiday resorts
and such other accommadations providing an affardable and predicable stay experience to customar, in India. The Group's interest in Mypreferred Transformation and Hospitality
Private Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following table illustrates the summarized financial Information of the

Group's investment in Myprefarred Transformation and Hospitality Private Limited:

| Particulars Asat Asal
31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019

Mon-current assets 84.13 -
Current assets 7751.26 6,858.69
Total assats 7875.39 6,858.69
Equity 713344 6,854.12
Man-current liabilities 2.74 124
Current liabilities 733.21 3.33
Total equity and liabilities 7,875.39 6,858.69
Total revenue including other income for the year/period* 2154.41 1462
Total expenszes for the year/period” 1482 21 0.06
Incomea tax expense 386,88 4.51
Profit for the year/period* 285.32 10.05
Group's share of profit for the year/period* 142.08 5.00

* from 02 November 2018 to 31 March 2013

The joint venture has capital and other commitments of INR 429 36 millions (31 March 2013: Nil} and contingent liability of INR 1.32 milliens {31 March 2019: Nil)

(ii} The Group has 49.599 % {31 March 2019; Nil) interest in Meuntainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited, acquired on 17 April 2019, which is primarily engaged in the
business of contractors, builders, town planners, infrastructure developers, estate developers and angineers, land developars, landscapers, estate agents, immavable property
dealers and to acquire, buy, purehase, hire or otherwise lands, buildings, civil works immovable property of any tenura ar any interast in the same and to erect and construct,
hotels, houses, flats, bungalows, kothis or ciwil work of every type on the land of the Company ar any other land or immovable property whether belonging to the Company or not
and to pull down, rebuild, enlarge alter and other conveniences and to deal with and improve, property of the Company or any ather immovable property in India or abroad. Alse,
the company is also engaged in business of managing and operating hotels, long term and short term stay homes, guest houses and such other accommedations providing an
affordable and predicable stay experience to customer, Further the Company is also engaged in providing technical knaw-how and training in field of operations and management of
hotels matels etc. and in marketing and managing hotels and other boarding and/or |odging services. The Group's intarest in Mountainla Developers and Hospitality Private Limited
ial The foll

is accounted for using the equity method in the consclidated fi
Mauntainia Developers and Hospitality Private Limited:

g table illustrates the summarized financial information of the Group's investment in

; As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
|Mon-current assets 1,513.47 -
Current assets 13,056.04 -
Total assets 14,569.51 -
Equity 14,160,768 =
Nen-current liabilities 138.11 5
Current liahbilities 270.64 -
Total equity and liabilities 14,568.51 =
Total revenue including other income for the period 435.01 -
Tatal expenses for the period 343.35 -
Income tax axpensa 146.74 -
Profit for the period 344.92 -
Other comprehensive incame 0.84
Group's share of profit far the period 172.88 b

The jeint venture has capital cormmitments of INR 0.42 millions {31 Mareh 2019: Nil).

{iiil) The Group has 439,599% (31 March 2019; Nil) interest in OYQ My Preferred UK Limitad, acquired on 5 April 2019, which is primarily engaged in the business of renovation and
transformation of hotel propertias, The Group's interest in OYO My Preferrad UK Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The
fallowing table illustrates the summarized financial infarmation of the Group's investment in OYO My Preferred UK Limited:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

MNon-current assets o -
Current assets 7,461 86 -
Total assets 7,461.86 -
Equity 7,454.35 -
Non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities 7.51 -
Total equity and fiabilities 7,461.86 -
Tetal revenue including other income for the period 785.63 -
Total expenses for the period 760.08 -
Income tax expense 6.18 =
Profit for the period 19.38 -
Other comprehensive income 279.06

Group's share of profit for the period 149,19 -

The joint venture has no conlingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31

March 2020 and 31 March 2019
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(iv) The Group has 49% {31 March 201%: Nil) interest in OYO Marina Wendtorf Invest || GmbH, acquired an 31 May, 2019, which is primarily engagad in the business af canstruction
and servicing of vacation homes. The Group's intarest in Marina Wendtorf Invest [l SmbH is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The

following table illustrates the surnmarized financial information of the Groug®s investment in Marina Wendtarf Invest Il GrriaH:

. Asat As at

Particulars
31 iviarch 2020 31 March 2013

Non-current assets o =
Current assets 318.15
Total assets 318.15 =
Eguity 164.42
Nan-current lizhilities =
Currant liabilities 153.73
Total equity and liabilities 318.15 4
Total revenue for the period 110.39
Total expenses for the period 90,78
Income tax expense 16.48
Profit for the period 3.13
Group's share of profit for the period 1.53

{v) The Group has 49.939% (Nil as at 31 March 2015} interest in OY¥0 Mountainia UK Lirmited, acquired on 10 April 2019, which is primaniy engaged in the business of renovation and
transformation of hotel properties. The Group's interest in OYC My Preferred UK Limitad is accounted for using the equity method in the consalidated financial statements. The

following table illustratas the summarized financial information of the Greup's investment in YO Mountainia UK Limited:

Particulars Asat HEHE
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNan-current assets 15,154.09
Current assels 20,063.79
Total assats 35,317.89 -
Equity 25,993,34 -
Mon-current liabilities 7.,483.44 -
Current liabilities 835,11
Total equity and liabilities 35,317.89 =
Total revenue for the penod 2,478.12 -
Total expanses for the period 5,388.89
Income tax expense 84.91 =
Loss far the period {2.995.68) -
MNon controlling interast 245.88
Group's share of profit for the period (1,374.90) -
The joint venture has no contingent liabiitias or capital commitmeants as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
L GIAYS A
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49, Subsequent events

(i) Subsequent to the vaar ended 31 March 2020, 0¥0 Technology & Hospitality kpan KK merged with OYD Hotels Japan 58 The transaction has been successfully completed on 31 July 2020, Pursuant to that entire iife
business af OY0 Technology & Hospitality lapan KR merged with OY0 Hotels lapan GK

{13} Subsequent to the year endod 31 March 2020, the Groug has transferred 27735 stake of OY0 Hotels Cayrman [step down subsidiary} The transfer agreement has been executed on 15 Augest 20J0 Pursuant to such
transfer the Group last contielin above mentioned step down subsidiary and the entity will be become a joint venture of the Group,

(iii} subsequent 1o the year erided 31 March 2020, the Company has changed the exerase price to INR 10 for all ESOP's granted July 2019 anwards, Thes would result inincrease of Share based payment expenze in future
yaars

(i) Subsequent ta the year ended 31 March, 2020, TUl sold 100% stake of ‘Woltars Ressen GrbH' to E-Domizil which includes the business segments 'Online Travel Agency for Holway Homes' and ‘Towr Operatos’ The
Tour Operator business comprises the units ‘Holiday Homes” and Tours” The Group through one of its wholly awned subsidiary acquered thi Holiday Homes business umit which was demerged from Wolters Rersen to
twe entities Targat KG (limited partnership) and Target GmBH. The Group acquired both the entnes from E-Domizil for Enterprise Walue of Eure 9.5 mn. The transaction was closed an 30 September 2020

(v) Due to sevare impact of pandemic on the hospitality industry. the Group explared number of cost reduction and sfficiency optimisatian moasures, As 3 result. subseguent to year end, the Group furkoughed
employess with kmited benefits across all lavels in wanious subsidiartes fram May 4, 2000 far 2 manths to 6 months periad

50. Exceptional items

(i) Restructuring cast
Duning January 2020, the Group announced & plan to resiructure its certain operation {ihe Plan) of is self operating segment of business. The plan s expected ta deliver cost efficencies in long term and entails
reduction of certain cost, an of emplayees, reallignment of corporate resources and terminations of lease / other contracts, Due to implementation of this plan. certain additional costs relating te

early exitftermination of contracts, write down of inventory other assets and employee related severancs/ather costs of INR 4,287 35 millisns hive bean recorded s exceptional coit jrefer table balow) which is basad
s management estimates from the date of announcement through approval of these financial statements,

(i) E=ti ion af i lated to giok on COVID 19

The spread of the new coranavirus has caused an unprecedented health and economic cnss across he world, In the begmning of year 200, governments globally implemented seme farm of fockdawns, and placed
varaus restr clions far busimasses relating ta mter and intra countey travel, These restnictions and requirements of sooal destancing have inpacted warous types of busineswes worldwode induding Company's businesses
The government arders caused hotels assockated with the Campany to suspend their businesses for a certain perod of ime '

The Gisup has respanded to the crisis with agility and has taken several strategic and decisive actions including cost reduction and restructuring initiatives. Based on current pregress, the management does not foreses
any stress on the Graup’s Haquidity, as the Company ether have access to suffioent unutilised sanctioned borrowing facilities for warking capital requirements or have sofficient cash and cash equivalents and other bank
balancesas on 31 March 2020,

The management has also assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of property, plant & equipment ineluding capital work in proaress, trade recoivables, other financial assets, inventones and
other assets appeanng in the financial statements of the Geowp as an 31 March 2020 Based on currant indicators of future economie conditions. the carmying amourts of these assets have been adjusted and the
remaiming carryamg value s fully realisable.

Below table summansegs the exceptional losses due to re-structunng and Cowd 19:

For the year ended
Naote Restructuring oviD 19 31 March 2020
{in milliens)
Impairment of property, plant and egquipment including capital wark in progress Mate 3,34 2,201.34 324307 544441
Other iimancial assets®* Note 6A58 68521 2,283.13 2.968.34
Inventaries® Note B 17546 214.62 390,08
Trade recervable ** %= Note & - 4,062,785 4,052.78
Other assets®** Note 124,128 5558 2498.15 255383
Trade payables® = Piote 18 6853 5.050.94 5.119.47
Qther inanoal liabilites Mote 198 . TR 7282
Severance and employee related costs Nate 25 L1123 - 110123
Gaun on derecogmition of finance lease labilities - 13762.82) (3.762.83
Tatal (i) 4,28735 13.662.70 17.950.14

“includes whte off of mventory amounting to INR 144 86 million

“includes write off of ather financal assets amounting to INR 770,22 mellion

“=*includes write off of other assets ameunting to INA 824,23 million

"7 *camprises of provision ameunting to INR 3,744,86, INR 566,57 millions, INR 180 mullion and INR 627.64 millions towards onerous cantracts, terrmination /et of lease contract with hotel partners, rantal payment for
the menth of March and ather vendor payments dus to contract cancellations respectively due to COVID 19,

“***ineludes woe off of INR 2062 43 million

The management does not anticipate any further sgmficant adjustment in carrying values of assets and hiasilities in these financal statements However, these evaluations are based on scenario based analysas carmed
out by the managernent and internal and esternal infor mation available up to the date of approval of these results. The impact of COVID 19 may daffer from that esumated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements. The company will continue ta moniter any future dhanges 10 the business and financial statements due to COVID-19,

51. Capital reduction

The Board of Drractoss of the Dy ged Company had duced a new ESOP palicy in ESOP Scheme 2018 whareby, instead of allotting shares ta exiting Oravel Employee Welfare Teust {*Trust’] epfront, 3 virtusl pool
of such ESOFs has been created and instead of having shares pre-allotted 1o the Trust, it was proposed that only upon exereise of ESOP By a qualifying employee (and recoipt of the exercise pricel, will allot the requisite
sharels) to the Trust. In arder to follow a wniferm ESOP policy, the Company has reduced the share capital held by the Trust under the old ES0P policy held as of the Effective Date 1., 01 November 2019 ather than any
portion of the share capital which has been identified by the Trust, pnor to the Effective Date, as baing far the benefit of a specific qualifying emplayee

52. Business combination
Summary of material acquisitions during the year ended 31 March 2020 is given kelow

On 31 May 2019, the Group acouired. 1005 of the votng shares of OY0 Vacation Homes Holding B V. (farmerly known as Lesure Heldings BV ) a non-listed company based in Nethedand The Group acquired 0v0
Vacatran Homes Holding B\, because it significantly enlarges the business of vacation/holiday homes, apartments and park of homeowners/agences. This transachion has been accounted as per acquisstion method
spedificd m IND A5 103 “Business Combinatsen” and accordingly, the excess of purchase consideration paid over fair value of assets acquired has been attibuted to goodwill and the goodwill iz not tax deductible:
Acquisition-related costs are expensed asncurred,

Assets acquired and Nabilities assumed

The fair values af the identifiable assets and lianilities of OYO Vacation Homes Halding B.Y. as at the date of icquistion were:

Purchase price
allocated

Assets

Property, plant and equipmient 53093
Intangible assets” 15.961.62
Right of use assets 57170
Non-current nvestment 4872
Frnancial assets 1662
Receavables 7.057 78
Cashand cash equivalents 343558
Othar assets 596.84

Total assets

Gurugram




Oravel Stays Privata Limitad
CIRN: usanso&m1mcmms
Notestoc lidated for the year ended on 31 March 2020

{Amount i Indian Rupees Millions, unless stated othervise)

Lizhilities

Leass liabilities

Bosrowings

Pravision far income tan
Other liabilities and provisions
Deferred tax Liabiiities

Tatal liabilities

Total identifiable net assets a fair value
Gaadwill arming on acquisition
Purchase consid eration transferred

Purchase consideration
Cash and cash equivalents transfered
Contingent consaderation lability

25385.60

25,985 60

lnldnglble assets smounting to INA 15,963.62 millionsincludes Brand, Safrware and Franchise agreement amaunting to INR 10,196.38 mallions. IMA 508 09 millions and NS, 290 6% millons respactivaly, ansing from the
and the diff of INR 32.52 million due to acquisition date exchange rate cansiderad for the purpose of above disclosures.

The proforma effects of ties business combination on the Group's results were not material,

53, Change of name of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2020, name of balow mentioned subsicharies has baen changed which are as follows;
a, feam "Aleatt Town Plannars Private Limitsd” to "0¥0 Hatels and Harmes Private Limited”

b. from “0¥0 Brazl Servicos De Tunsamo Led® 1o "OY0 Brasi| Hospitalidade E Tecnologia Eirel”

e fromn "Lavsure Holdings B.Y." to "0¥D Vacation Homes holding B\

d. drom "OV0 Hatels LLC" o "OY0 Hotels mc USA

58. Dunng the year 2018 the management decaded to move all key assets and key functiens of Bekvilla’s VRMC business to Switzerland as of December 1, 2008 Therefare, as per December 15, 2018 the tour operating
actiyities are transferred to Switzedand, Belvilla Services BV, has adjusted its activities and acts solely as a service prowider for the Group a5 of December 141, 1018,

The newe estabilished Swass toor operator is the supplier of services to the guest. Based on the new business model and in accordance with Dutch and FLU WAT law. these services fall within the scope of the Tour Dperatar

Margin Scheme and as a result the VAT on thoe services s to be declared in Switzerdand, and not in the Netherlands, or in any ather EU member state. Based on the curent business model, the rish of an sdditional VAT

charge from the Dutch tax authorities is not envisaged.

{This space has been ntentronally lefi blank)
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55, The social seeunty 2020 (Code), which received the President Assent on September 18, 2020 subsumes nine laws rolating ta social securty and employee benedits, the Employee Provident Fund

and Miseellanasus Pravisions Art, 1952 and Paymert of Grabity Ac1, 1872 The effective date of the code 15 vat to bie notified. The Company will assess and recard the mpact of the Code, if amy, when it Comes into effact,

As per our repont of even date For and an behalf of the board of directors of
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